
MINUTES OF LINCOLN ELECTRIC SYSTEM ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD 

Minutes of the regular meeting held at 9:30 a.m., Friday, April 15, 2022, at the Lincoln Electric 
System Operations Center, 9445 Rokeby Road, Lincoln, Nebraska. Public notice of 
today's meeting was published in the Lincoln Journal Star on April 8, 2022. 

Board Members Present: DaNay Kalkowski, Andrew Hunzeker, Lucas Sabalka, David 
Spinar, Karen Griffin, Carl Eskridge 

Board Members Absent: Layne Sup, Kim Morrow, Chelsea Johnson (Johnson participated 
virtually but may not be counted as present or vote per the Open 
Meetings Act.) 

LES Staff Present: Shelley Sahling-Zart, Emily Koenig, David Malcom, Paul Crist, 
Jason Fortik, Lisa Hale, Trish Owen, Travis Moore, Jim Rigg, 
Kelley Porter, Mel Palmer, Marc Shkolnick, Scott Benson, Daniel 
Dixon, Melissa Landis, Michael Guilliatt,  

Others Present: Ken Harr, Ken Winston 

News Media Present: None 

Chair DaNay Kalkowski declared a quorum present and called the 
meeting to order at approximately 9:30 a.m. A safety briefing 
was provided. Kalkowski noted that LES conducts its 
meetings in compliance with the Nebraska Open Meetings 
Act and noted that copies of the Act are located with the 
Board Assistant Secretary. 

Chair DaNay Kalkowski asked for approval of the March 18, 2022, 
meeting minutes. David Spinar moved their approval. Lucas 
Sabalka seconded the motion. The vote for approval of the 
minutes was: 

Aye: DaNay Kalkowski, Andrew Hunzeker, Lucas 
Sabalka, David Spinar, Karen Griffin, Carl 
Eskridge 

Nay: None 

Absent: Layne Sup, Chelsea Johnson, Kim Morrow 

Call to Order & Safety 
Briefing 

Approval of Minutes 

Ken Haar discussed his personal experience converting his home to 
an air-source heat pump and encouraged greater promotion 
of electrification. 

Ken Winston, Nebraska Sierra Club, commented on the 2022 

Customer Comments 
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Nebraska Legislative Session, upcoming interim studies, 
LES' integrated resource planning process, energy efficiency 
efforts, and LES' Sustainable Energy Program. 

Jason Fortik, Vice President, Power Supply, recognized Daniel 
Dixon, Supervisor Inter-Local Projects, Engineering, for 20 
years of service to LES. 

Jason Fortik, Vice President, Power Supply, recognized 
Melissa Landis, Specialist II Environmental, for 20 years of 
service to LES. 

Paul Crist, Vice President, Energy Delivery, recognized 
Michael Guilliatt, Project Inspector, Transmission & 
Distribution Construction, for 30 years of service to LES. 

Introduction & 
Recognition of Staff 

Lucas Sabalka, Chair of the Operations & Power Supply Committee, 
reported on Committee discussions which included the 
following: 1) an update on supply chain issues; 2) PCB 
mitigation initiatives and supply chain impacts; and 3) an 
update on the energy storage resource project. (Exhibit I) 

Operations & Power 
Supply Committee Report 

Carl Eskridge, Member of the Finance & Audit Committee, reported 
on Committee discussions which included the following: 1) 
External Audit Review of 2021 Financial Statements; 2) First 
Quarter 2022 Financial Review and 2022 Forecast; 3) 
Investment Committee 2021 Annual Report; 4) Liquidity 
Study Update; and 5) Internal Audit First Quarter Report and 
Follow-Up Report. (Exhibit II) 

Finance & Audit 
Committee Report 

Carl Eskridge moved to accept the 2021 Annual External 
Audit by BKD CPAs & Advisors. (Exhibit III) David Spinar 
seconded the motion. The vote for approval was: 

Aye: DaNay Kalkowski, Andrew Hunzeker, Lucas 
Sabalka, David Spinar, Karen Griffin, Carl 
Eskridge 

Nay: None 

Absent: Layne Sup, Chelsea Johnson, Kim Morrow 

2021 Annual External 
Audit 

Andrew Hunzeker, Chair of the Personnel & Organization 
Committee, reported on Committee discussions regarding 
proposed employee compensation adjustments which are 
recommended by the committee for approval. (Exhibit IV) 

Personnel & Organization 
Committee Report 
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Melissa Palmer, Manager, Human Resources, and Emily Koenig, 
Vice President & CFO, reviewed the recommendations to 
align the LES Compensation Plan with current market 
conditions. (Exhibit V) Market data related to the LES Pay 
Structure have changed significantly since the fall of 2021 
when the compensation study was completed. An off-cycle 
adjustment is necessary to maintain LES's philosophy of 
paying at 50 percent of the market. Koenig noted that the 
annualized budgetary impact of the pay structure and off-
cycle market adjustments are manageable. 

 
Andrew Hunzeker moved the adoption of LES Resolution 
2022-2. (Exhibit VI) Karen Griffin seconded the motion. The 
vote for approval was: 

 
Aye: DaNay Kalkowski, Andrew Hunzeker, Lucas 

Sabalka, David Spinar, Karen Griffin, Carl 
Eskridge 

 
Nay:   None 
 

 Absent:  Layne Sup, Chelsea Johnson, Kim Morrow 
 

LES Compensation Plan 
Alignment with Market – 
LES Resolution 2022-2 

Shelley Sahling-Zart, Vice President and General Counsel, provided 
an update on state legislative matters. (Exhibit VII) The 
Nebraska Legislature will adjourn Sine Die on April 20, 
2022. LES has been monitoring two bills, LB 1045 and LB 
520, which came up last week, but no further action was 
taken. 

 
Sahling-Zart also discussed several legislative resolutions 
that LES plans to monitor over the summer. Specifically, LR 
355 proposes reviewing and modernizing language contained 
in Chapter 70 of the Nebraska Revised Statutes, which 
regulates the public power industry. 

 

State Legislative Report 

Jason Fortik, Vice President, Power Supply, presented the First 
Quarter 2022 Power Supply Report. (Exhibit VIII) 

 
Net power costs for the first quarter of 2022 are 3.8 percent 
below budget. The Lincoln area's market electricity prices 
posted mixed results, with higher natural gas prices and 
slightly higher footprint loads pushing up prices. At the same 
time, increased wind production and fewer generators on 
outage exerted downward pressure on prices. 
 
 

First Quarter 2022 Power 
Supply Report 
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In the first quarter of 2022, LES offered 38 percent coal, 41 
percent oil and gas, and 22 percent renewables to the 
Southwest Power Pool (SPP). The energy utilized by SPP 
was 49 percent coal, 48 percent renewable, and 3 percent oil 
and gas. 

  
Emily Koenig, Vice President & CFO, presented the First Quarter 

2022 Financial Review and indicated that results are 
favorable due to higher than budgeted revenues and lower 
expenses. (Exhibit IX) 

 
Retail revenue was three percent above budget due to higher 
energy usage in residential and commercial classes. 
Additionally, all cost categories see lower than budgeted 
year-to-date results, and estimated increases in expenses 
result in year-end new revenue forecasted slightly below 
budget. Projections indicate a year-end capital forecast that is 
$1.5 million above budget. 

First Quarter 2022 
Financial Review 

  
Emily Koenig, Vice President & CFO, discussed Key Performance 

Indicator data for the first quarter of 2022. (Exhibit X) 
Cybersecurity has continued to be a focus across the 
industry, and LES has experienced an increase in suspicious 
emails and cybersecurity cases. However, employees have 
continued to be diligent about proper cyber hygiene in 2022. 

First Quarter 2022 Key 
Performance Indicators 
Data 

  
Kelley Porter, Manager, Customer & Corporate Communications, 

presented LES' 2021 Annual Report. (Exhibit XI) The report 
highlighted LES' notable response during Winter Storm Uri, 
participation in mutual aid responses, and the EV Ride and 
Drive event. The full report is available on the LES website. 

 

2021 Annual Report 
 

Scott Benson, Manager, Resource & Transmission Planning, 
provided a more in-depth review of the Integrated Resource 
Plan process. (Exhibit XII) Creating an IRP is a process by 
which a utility evaluates the full range of resource options to 
ensure adequate and reliable service to customers at the 
lowest cost. The planning process must account for all 
necessary features of system operation, such as diversity, 
reliability, dispatchability, and other risk factors. This 
process fulfills LES's requirement to practice integrated 
resource planning under Nebraska state law and submit an 
IRP every five years to the Western Area Power 
Administration per its contract for hydroelectric power. 

 
Marc Shkolnick, Manager, Energy Services, provided a 
preview of his presentation of LES' Sustainable Energy 

Integrated Resource Plan 
(IRP) Introduction 
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Program for the first IRP public meeting of 2022. (Exhibit 
XIII) The key points included: 1) the primary objective of 
LES' SEP is to reduce peak demand, incentivize the adoption 
of emerging technologies, and ensure the value of incentives 
makes sense for participants and non-participants; 2) since 
2009, the program has dispersed $9.1 million to residential 
customers on almost 15,000 projects in the Lincoln area and 
reduced the system's annual demand by 12.6MW; 3) since 
2009 the program has utilized $19.5 million in SEP 
incentives on just over 5,000 commercial projects, saving 
approximately 22.5MW of annual demand; and 4) LES 
worked with nFront Consulting to perform a high-level 
benchmark review of LES' SEP with peer utilities and 
statewide energy efficiency studies and meta-analysis. 

 
The Revenue and Expense Statements and Financial and Operating 

Statements for March 2022 are available, and the Power 
Supply Division Monthly Reports for March 2022. (Exhibit 
XIV) 

Monthly Financial and 
Power Supply Reports 

  
The next regular meeting of the LES Administrative Board will be 

Friday, May 20, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. 
 

Next Meeting 

There being no further business before the Board, Chair Kalkowski 
declared the meeting adjourned at approximately 12:11 p.m. 

Adjournment 

 
 
    David Spinar, Secretary 
 
 

      BY:  S/Travis Moore 
         Travis Moore 
         Assistant Secretary 



Exhibit I 



Operations and Power Supply Committee 
Meeting Summary

April 4, 2022 (virtual)

Supply Chain Issues Update (Todd Dlouhy): 

 Staff shared information on equipment lead times, price increases, contractor labor costs and
labor shortages, and the various factors that are influencing the supply chains for electric utility
industry related items.

 Relative to a 2018 baseline, LES’s recent procurement experiences indicate delivery times for
certain materials have doubled or even tripled for some items, while price increases for products
and services have experienced increases ranging from 30% to 190%.

 Staff has been managing the situation by closely monitoring inventory levels, strategically
procuring equipment, and tailoring projects around material and contractor availabilities.

PCB Mitigation Initiatives and Supply Chain Impacts (Joel Dagerman): 
 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB’s) are man-made organic chemicals that have characteristics

such as low electrical conductivity and low flammability that are very desirable for use as
electrical insulating oil, but also have characteristics that are potentially damaging to the
environment and human health.

 LES initiated a project in 2018 to systematically test LES’s older distribution transformers for PCB
content and replace any found to contain PCB’s with newer, non-PCB equipment.

 This project was expected to conclude at the end of 2023, but that date may be extended to 2025
due to supply chain issues.  Several strategies have been implemented to mitigate equipment
delivery delays that are affecting the project.

Energy Storage Resource Project Update (Scott Benson): 
 Staff provided a status update on the ongoing discussions and draft contract reviews with the

preferred developer for the energy storage resource project.



Exhibit II 



Finance & Audit Committee – April 15, 2022 
In-Person  

1. External Audit Review of 2021 Financial Statements (BKD & Dustan)
 A representative from BKD, LES’ external audit team, provided the Committee a review of the

audit of LES’ 2021 financial statement.
 LES received an unmodified (clean) audit opinion.
 A copy of the annual report and a communication letter from BKD have been provided to board

members.
At the completion of the F&A minutes,  

please make a motion to “accept” the 2021 annual audit. 

2. First Quarter 2022 Financial Review and 2022 Forecast (Emily)
Emily will be making a presentation on First Quarter Financials  

during the Board meeting 

 The first quarter 2022 financial results and year end forecast were reviewed with the committee.
 Financial metrics are currently expected to be near budget at year-end.
 Initial forecasts indicate that there is the potential for capital spending to exceed the budget in

2022.  Staff will continue to monitor spending.

3. Investment Committee 2021 Annual Report (Bryan)
 The Annual Investment Committee Report reviews the roles of the various groups which provide

oversight to the LES retirement plans, fund options and metrics, significant actions of the
Investment Committee in 2021 as well as a summary of the topics discussed at the quarterly
Investment Committee meetings.

 The report will be reviewed with the full Board in May.

4. Liquidity Study Update (Wade)
 An overview of the 2022 Liquidity Study was provided to the committee, including the targets for

the Revenue and Rate Stabilization Funds.
 The new combined liquidity target is set at 89 days of cash on hand, which is a 1 day increase

over the current target of 88 days.

5. Internal Audit First Quarter Report and Follow-Up Report (David)
 Internal Auditing presented the Quarterly report for the first quarter of 2022.  The report included

final audit reports on the LES Toolroom and Personally Identifiable Information.  Both audit
reports had qualified audit opinions with minor findings and recommendations.

 The semi-annual report to the committee on audit finding follow-up was also presented.  Good
progress continues to be made on implementing audit recommendations.

mmiller
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Administrative Board, Finance and Audit Committee, and Management 
Lincoln Electric System 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
 
 
As part of our audit of the financial statements of Lincoln Electric System (LES) as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2021, we wish to communicate the following to you. 

AUDIT SCOPE AND RESULTS 

Auditor’s Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United 
States of America and the Standards Applicable to Financial Audits Contained in 
Government Auditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller General of the United States 

An audit performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States is designed to obtain reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance about the financial statements.  In performing auditing procedures, we establish scopes 
of audit tests in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  Our engagement does not include a 
detailed audit of every transaction.  Our contract more specifically describes our responsibilities. 
 
These standards require communication of significant matters related to the financial statement audit that 
are relevant to the responsibilities of those charged with governance in overseeing the financial reporting 
process.  Such matters are communicated in the remainder of this letter or have previously been 
communicated during other phases of the audit.  The standards do not require the auditor to design 
procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to be communicated with those charged with 
governance. 
 
An audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their 
responsibilities.  Our contract more specifically describes your responsibilities. 
 
Other Information Accompanying the Audited Financial Statements 

The audited financial statements are presented along with management’s annual report.  Management, or 
those charged with governance, is responsible for preparing the annual report.  We were not engaged to 
audit the information contained in the annual report and as a result our opinion does not provide assurance 
as to the completeness and accuracy of the information contained therein.  Instead, our objectives with 
regard to such information were to: 
 

 Consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial 
statements 
 

 Remain alert for indications that: 
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o A material inconsistency exists between the other information and the auditor’s knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or 
 

o A material misstatement of fact exists or the other information is otherwise misleading 
 

 Respond appropriately when we identify that such material inconsistencies appear to exist or when 
we otherwise become aware that other information appears to be materially misstated.  Potential 
responsive actions would include requesting management to correct the identified inconsistency 
 

 Include the appropriate communication in our auditor’s report, disclosing the procedures performed 
on the Other Information, as well as the results obtained 

 
We performed the procedures listed above and noted no material inconsistencies were identified. 

Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Policies and Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

LES’ significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 of the audited financial statements.  The 
following accounting policies are of significant importance to LES’ financial statements. 
 

 Utility plant, including the determination of estimated useful lives and depreciation methods 
 Accounting for certain revenues and costs in accordance with the provisions of Governmental 

Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Codification Section Re10, Regulated Operations 
 
Alternative Accounting Treatments 

We had discussions with management regarding alternative accounting treatments within accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for policies and practices for material items, 
including recognition, measurement, and disclosure considerations related to the accounting for specific 
transactions as well as general accounting policies, as follows: 
 

 Proper accounting treatment in accordance with the provisions of GASB Codification Section 
Re10, Regulated Operations, specifically as it relates to regulatory assets and liabilities, capital 
contributions and the recovery of plant costs 

 
Management Judgments and Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of financial statement preparation by management, based on its 
judgments.  The following areas involve significant estimates for which we are prepared to discuss 
management’s estimation process and our procedures for testing the reasonableness of those estimates: 
 

 Calculation of unbilled revenues 
 Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
 Capital assets, including estimated useful lives, depreciation methods and allocation of overhead 

and other costs 
 Reserves for future health and dental claims 
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Significant Unusual Transactions 

Significant unusual transactions represent significant transactions that are outside the normal course of 
business for the entity or that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their timing, size, or nature.  We have 
identified the following transactions that we consider to be significant and unusual. 
 

No matters are reportable. 
 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

The following areas involve particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures for which we are prepared 
to discuss the issues involved and related judgments made in formulating those disclosures: 
 

 Long-term debt and liabilities 
 Jointly-governed organizations 
 Commitments and contingencies 
 Environmental regulations 

Audit Adjustments 

During the course of any audit, an auditor may propose adjustments to financial statement amounts.  
Management evaluates our proposals and records those adjustments which, in its judgment, are required to 
prevent the financial statements from being materially misstated.  A misstatement is a difference between 
the amount, classification, presentation, or disclosure of a reported financial statement item and that which 
is required for the item to be presented fairly in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework.   
 
Areas in which adjustments were proposed and recorded include: 
 

 Asset retirement obligations 

Auditor’s Judgments About the Quality of the LES’ Accounting Principles 

During the course of the audit, we made the following observations regarding LES’ application of 
accounting principles.  LES adopted the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Statements for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2021: 
 

 GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period 

Other Material Communications 

Listed below are other material communications between management and us related to the audit: 
 

 Management representation letter (attached) 
 We orally communicated to management another deficiency in internal control identified during 

our audit that is not considered a material weakness or a significant deficiency 
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OTHER MATTERS 

We observed the following matters and offer these comments and suggestions with respect to matters which 
came to our attention during the course of the audit of the financial statements.  Our audit procedures are 
designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and, therefore, may not bring 
to light all weaknesses in policies and procedures that may exist.  However, these matters are offered as 
constructive suggestions for the consideration of management as part of the ongoing process of modifying 
and improving financial and administrative practices and procedures.  We can discuss these matters further 
at your convenience and may provide implementation assistance for changes or improvements. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 87, Leases (GASB 87).  GASB 
87 provides a new framework for accounting for leases under the principle that leases are financings.  No 
longer will leases be classified between capital and operating.  Lessees will recognize an intangible asset 
and a corresponding liability.  The liability will be based on the payments expected to be paid over the lease 
term, which includes an evaluation of the likelihood of exercising renewal or termination options in the 
lease.  Lessors will recognize a lease receivable and related deferred inflow of resources.  Lessors will not 
derecognize the underlying asset.  An exception to the general model is provided for short-term leases that 
cannot last more than 12 months.  Contracts that contain lease and non-lease components will need to be 
separated so each component is accounted for accordingly. 
 
This statement will be effective for LES’ fiscal year ending December 31, 2022. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96 
 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based 
Information Technology Arrangements (GASB 96).  GASB 96 provides guidance on the accounting and 
financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government 
end users.  This statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use 
subscription asset – an intangible asset – and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the 
capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a 
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. 
 
This statement will be effective for LES’ fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. 
 

***** 
 
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Finance and Audit 
Committee, Administrative Board and others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
 

 
 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
March 31, 2022 
 



 

 

 
Representation of: 
Lincoln Electric System 
9445 Rokeby Road  
Lincoln, Nebraska 68526 
 
Provided to: 
BKD, LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
1248 “O” Street, Suite 1040 
Lincoln, Nebraska 68508 
 
 
The undersigned (“We”) are providing this letter in connection with BKD’s audits of our financial 
statements as of and for the years December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Our representations are current and effective as of the date of BKD’s report:  March 31, 2022. 
 
Our engagement with BKD is based on our contract for services dated:  December 8, 2021 

Our Responsibility and Consideration of Material Matters2 

We confirm that we are responsible for the fair presentation of the financial statements subject to BKD’s 
report in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.4F 
 
We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies; establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over financial reporting, operations, and compliance; and preventing and detecting fraud.  
 
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.  Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting 
information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable 
person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. 

Confirmation of Matters Specific to the Subject Matter of BKD’s Report5F 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following:  
 

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of our contract, for the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of: 

 
a. Internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

b. Internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 
 

3. We have everything we need to keep our books and records. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 250600E3-3C54-4860-83D6-58DD134771D7
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4. We have provided you with: 
 

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, 
and other matters. 

 
b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the 

audit. 
 

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

 
d. All minutes of meetings of the governing body held through the date of this letter 

or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been 
prepared.  All unsigned copies of minutes provided to you are copies of our original 
minutes approved by the governing body, if applicable, and maintained as part of 
our records. 

 
e. All significant contracts and grants. 

 
5. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 

financial statements. 
 

6. We have informed you of all current risks of a material amount that are not adequately 
prevented or detected by our procedures with respect to: 

 
a. Misappropriation of assets. 

 
b. Misrepresented or misstated assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 

deferred inflows of resources, or net position. 
 

7. We have no knowledge of any known or suspected fraudulent financial reporting or 
misappropriation of assets involving: 

 
a. Management or employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 

 
b. Others, where activities of others could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 
 

8. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
received in communications from employees, customers, regulators, suppliers, or others. 

 
9. We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a 

result of fraud and disclosed to you any such risk identified.  
 

10. We have disclosed to you the identity of all of the entity’s related parties and all the related-
party relationships of which we are aware.  In addition, we have disclosed to you all related-
party transactions of which we are aware.  
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Related-party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

 
We understand that the term related party refers to an affiliate, management and members 
of their immediate families, component units, and any other party with which the entity 
may deal if the entity can significantly influence, or be influenced by, the management or 
operating policies of the other.  The term affiliate refers to a party that directly or indirectly 
controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity. 

 
11. We are not aware of any side agreements or other arrangements (either written or oral) that 

are in place. 
 

12. Except as reflected in the financial statements, there are no: 
 

a. Plans or intentions that may materially affect carrying values or classifications of 
assets and liabilities. 

 
b. Material transactions omitted or improperly recorded in the financial records. 

 
c. Material gain/loss contingencies requiring accrual or disclosure, including those 

arising from environmental remediation obligations. 
 

d. Events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date through the date of this letter 
requiring adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 

 
e. Agreements to purchase assets previously sold. 

 
f. Restrictions on cash balances or compensating balance agreements. 

 
g. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable. 

 
13. We have disclosed to you all known instances of noncompliance or suspected 

noncompliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing financial statements. 

 
14. We have no reason to believe the entity owes any penalties or payments under the 

Employer Shared Responsibility Provisions of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care 
Act nor have we received any correspondence from the IRS or other agencies indicating 
such payments may be due.   

 
15. We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 

should be considered when preparing the financial statements.  The effects of all known 
actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
16. Adequate provisions and allowances have been accrued for any material losses from: 

 
a. Uncollectible receivables. 

 
b. Reducing obsolete or excess inventories to estimated net realizable value. 
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c. Sales commitments, including those unable to be fulfilled. 

 
d. Purchase commitments in excess of normal requirements or above prevailing 

market prices. 
 

17. Except as disclosed in the financial statements, the entity has: 
 

a. Satisfactory title to all recorded assets, and they are not subject to any liens, 
pledges, or other encumbrances. 

 
b. Complied with all aspects of contractual and grant agreements, for which 

noncompliance would materially affect the financial statements. 
 

18. The financial statements disclose all significant estimates and material concentrations 
known to us.  Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change 
materially within the next year.  Concentrations refer to volumes of business, revenues, 
available sources of supply, or markets for which events could occur that would 
significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.  Significant assumptions used 
by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 
reasonable. 

 
19. The fair values of financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities, if any, recognized in the 

financial statements or disclosed in the notes thereto are reasonable estimates based on the 
methods and assumptions used.  The methods and significant assumptions used result in 
measurements of fair value appropriate for financial statement recognition and disclosure 
purposes and have been applied consistently from period to period, taking into account any 
changes in circumstances.  The significant assumptions appropriately reflect market 
participant assumptions. 

 
20. We have not been designated as a potentially responsible party (PRP or equivalent status) 

by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) or other cognizant regulatory agency with 
authority to enforce environmental laws and regulations. 

 
21. With respect to any nonattest services you have provided us during the year, including 

assistance with the printing and binding of the financial statements: 
 

a. We have designated a qualified management-level individual to be responsible and 
accountable for overseeing the nonattest services. 

 
b. We have established and monitored the performance of the nonattest services to 

ensure they meet our objectives. 
 

c. We have made any and all decisions involving management functions with respect 
to the nonattest services and accept full responsibility for such decisions. 

 
d. We have evaluated the adequacy of the services performed and any findings that 

resulted. 
 

22. We have notified you of any instances of noncompliance with applicable disclosure 
requirements of the SEC Rule 15c2-12 and applicable state laws.16F 
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23. With regard to deposit and investment activities: 

 
a. All deposit, and investment transactions have been made in accordance with legal 

and contractual requirements. 
 

b. Disclosures of deposit and investment balances and risks in the financial 
statements are consistent with our understanding of the applicable laws regarding 
enforceability of any pledges of collateral. 

 
c. We understand that your audit does not represent an opinion regarding the 

enforceability of any collateral pledges. 
 

24. As an entity subject to Government Auditing Standards: 17F 
 

a. We acknowledge that we are responsible for compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 

 
b. We have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations, and provisions of 

contracts and grant agreements that have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of amounts in our financial statements or other financial data 
significant to the audit objectives. 

 
c. We have identified and disclosed to you any violations or possible violations of 

laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant agreements whose effects 
should be considered for recognition and/or disclosure in the financial statements 
or for your reporting on noncompliance. 

 
d. We have taken or will take timely and appropriate steps to remedy any fraud, 

abuse, illegal acts, or violations of provisions of contracts or grant agreements that 
you or other auditors report. 

 
e. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 

 
f. We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, 

performance audits, or other studies related to the objectives of your audit and the 
corrective actions taken to address any significant findings and recommendations 
made in such audits, attestation engagements, or other studies. 

 
25. The supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board, consisting of management’s discussion and analysis, has been prepared and is 
measured and presented in conformity with the applicable GASB pronouncements, and we 
acknowledge our responsibility for the information.  The information contained therein is 
based on all facts, decisions, and conditions currently known to us and is measured using 
the same methods and assumptions as were used in the preparation of the financial 
statements.  We believe the significant assumptions underlying the measurement and/or 
presentation of the information are reasonable and appropriate.  There has been no change 
from the preceding period in the methods of measurement and presentation. 
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26. We believe Lincoln Electric System may incur significant costs in the future as a result of 
the advanced technological improvements that may be needed as a result of new 
environmental regulations. However, the level of regulatory and legal uncertainty related 
to these regulations makes it impractical to quantify the specific potential financial impacts 
at this time. 

 
27. With regard to other information that is presented in the form of our annual report:20F 

 
a. We confirm that the 2021 Lincoln Electric System Financial Report comprises the 

annual report for the entity. 
 

b. We have provided you with the final draft of the annual report.21F 
 

28. We acknowledge the current economic volatility presents difficult circumstances and 
challenges for our industry.  Entities are potentially facing declines in the fair values of 
investments and other assets, declines in the volume of business, constraints on liquidity, 
difficulty obtaining financing, etc.  We understand the values of the assets and liabilities 
recorded in the financial statements could change rapidly, resulting in material future 
adjustments to asset values, allowances for accounts and notes receivable, net realizable 
value of inventory, etc., that could negatively impact the entity’s ability to meet debt 
covenants or maintain sufficient liquidity.   

 
We acknowledge that you have no responsibility for future changes caused by the current 
economic environment and the resulting impact on the entity’s financial statements.  
Further, management and governance are solely responsible for all aspects of managing 
the entity, including questioning the quality and valuation of investments, inventory, and 
other assets; reviewing allowances for uncollectible amounts; evaluating capital needs and 
liquidity plans; etc. 

 
 

   

Emily Koenig  
Chief Financial Officer  
ekoenig@les.com 

 Dustan Daniel 
Financial Accounting Manager 
drdaniel@les.com 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 
Administrative Board 
Lincoln Electric System 
Lincoln, Nebraska 
 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Lincoln Electric System, as of and for the years ended December 
31, 2021 and 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Lincoln 
Electric System’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Lincoln Electric System, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the 
changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of Lincoln Electric System, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only Lincoln Electric System and do not purport 
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Lincoln, Nebraska as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Lincoln Electric System’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Lincoln Electric System’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about Lincoln Electric System’s ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Lincoln, Nebraska 
March 31, 2022 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

2021 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS 
 
 In February 2021, LES navigated the energy emergency during Winter Storm Uri. A lack of fuel supply and 

extreme cold weather combined with rapid reduction in energy imports and record wintertime energy 
consumption, led the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) to require member utilities to shed load. Approximately 
47,000 LES customers were directly impacted by load-shedding rotating outages over two days, with durations 
ranging from 28 to 68 minutes. LES generation units were able to operate during the event and provided much 
needed support to the SPP footprint. LES established a new winter peak load of 624 MW during this period, 
exceeding forecast levels by over 90 MW. 

 
 In November 2021, LES successfully relocated its control room operations from the Walter A. Canney Service 

Center to the LES Operations Center (LOC) without any disruptions to operations. The Customer Care team was 
successfully relocated from the downtown Lincoln Electric Building (LEB) to the Service Center in March 2021. 
LES completed the sale of the LEB in April 2021.  

 
 Throughout 2021, LES disbursed approximately $1.6 million in Sustainable Energy Program funds to incent 

more than 2,500 energy efficiency projects, reducing projected peak demand by a net 4.8 MW and 7,200 
megawatt-hours (MWh) annually. 

 
 LES concluded its four-year campaign to convert customers to paperless billing, which resulted in 34% 

customer adoption.  In return for customer’s support of this effort, LES planted nearly 400 trees in city parks 
and installed solar benches for shade and electricity needs throughout the service area. 

 
 In late August 2021, LES crews provided mutual aid assistance in Houma, Louisiana, after Hurricane Ida left 

many communities without power. Three crews comprised of fourteen LES employees worked for two weeks in 
the state to help restore power to the communities impacted by the Category 4 storm. 

 
 LES processed $120,000 in Nebraska Environmental Trust grant funding to support 28 customer rebates for 

first-time purchase or lease of plug-in electric vehicles. 
 

 In January 2021, the LES Administrative Board adopted LES Resolution 2021-1, LES’ statement on diversity, 
equity and inclusion to reflect LES’ commitment to a continuous journey to be a diverse and inclusive company. 
 

 LES finished the year financially strong with year-end debt service coverage of 2.55, which was above LES’ 
budget of 2.03. This result recognizes the deferral of approximately $35,000,000 in financial benefit from Winter 
Storm Uri.  

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT OVERVIEW 
 
The information provided in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of the Financial Report is 
provided to explain the activities, plans and events that impacted LES’ financial position and operating results for 
the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019. This overview from management is one of the three 
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components of the Financial Report. The other two components are the Financial Statements and Notes to the      
Financial Statements. The Financial Report should be read in its entirety to understand the events and conditions 
impacting LES. 
 

Balance Sheet — This statement presents assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred 
inflows of resources and net position. Assets and liabilities are each divided to distinguish current and 
noncurrent. This statement reveals liquidity, financial flexibility and capital structure. 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position — Operating results are separated into 
operating revenue and expense, non-operating revenue and expense and capital contribution revenue and  
expense. This statement is useful in analyzing financial health.  
 
Statement of Cash Flows — This statement classifies sources and uses of cash summarized by operating, 
noncapital financing, capital and related financing and investing activities. 
 
Notes to Financial Statements — The notes provide additional information to support the Financial 
Statements. 

 
 

FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING 
RESULTS  

 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS 

 

Comparison of 2021 to 2020 
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased $45,641,000 in 2021 as compared to 2020, or 3.7 
percent. Current assets increased $48,413,000, primarily due to the result of operations during Winter Storm Uri. 
Noncurrent assets decreased $7,657,000 in 2021 as compared to 2020, due primarily to a decrease in Bond 
Reserve Funds related to the retirement of the 2003 bonds. Capital assets increased $9,353,000 due to capital 
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additions for utility construction and acquisition projects ($46,055,000), net of depreciation ($36,702,000). Deferred 
outflows of resources, which consist of unamortized losses on refunded debt and the deferred cost for an asset 
retirement obligation, decreased $4,468,000, due to amortization of deferred amounts. 
 
Current liabilities increased $1,210,000, primarily due to an increase in current maturities of long-term debt. 
Noncurrent liabilities decreased $39,740,000, primarily due to payments of bond principal and premium 
amortization. Deferred inflows of resources, which consist of regulatory liabilities for reductions of future billings, 
increased $34,932,000. 
 
Total net position increased a net of $49,239,000, primarily due to an increase in the net investment in capital 
assets of $35,828,000 and to an increase in the unrestricted fund of $13,614,000 when compared to the prior 
period. 
 
Comparison of 2020 to 2019 
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources increased $5,436,000 in 2020 as compared to 2019, or .4 percent. 
Current assets decreased $23,747,000, primarily due to funding of capital expenditures. Noncurrent assets 
decreased $3,434,000 in 2020 as compared to 2019, due primarily to a decrease in Bond Reserve Funds. Capital 
assets increased $27,156,000, due to capital additions for utility construction and acquisition projects 
($67,039,000), net of depreciation ($39,883,000). Deferred outflows of resources, which consist of unamortized 
losses on refunded debt and the deferred cost for an asset retirement obligation, increased $5,461,000, due to 
refunding of debt with the 2020B bond issue. 
 
Current liabilities decreased $4,576,000, primarily due to a decrease in accounts payable, a decrease in current 
maturities of long-term debt and a decrease in accrued interest related to the refunding of 2012A and 2015A bonds. 
Noncurrent liabilities decreased $25,231,000, primarily due to refunding of the 2012A and 2015A bonds which was 
partially offset by the issuance of the 2020A and 2020B bonds.  
 
Total net position increased a net of $35,243,000, primarily due to an increase in the net investment in capital 
assets of $55,651,000 and to a decrease in the unrestricted fund of $20,639,000 when compared to the prior period. 
 
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
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OPERATING REVENUES 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 

 

 
 
Comparison of 2021 to 2020 
Operating revenues in 2021 were $368,898,000, up 18.5 percent from 2020 revenues of $311,213,000. Retail 
revenue was $273,557,000, which was 4.1 percent higher than 2020 revenue of $262,878,000, due to higher energy 
sales, primarily in commercial revenue with a return to near-pre-pandemic operations. Wholesale revenue was 
$74,594,000, up 147.8 percent from 2020 revenue of $30,105,000, due primarily to market prices, especially during 
Winter Storm Uri. Other revenue was up 13.8 percent, primarily due to an increase in renewable energy certificate 
(REC) prices.  
 
Comparison of 2020 to 2019 
Operating revenues in 2020 were $311,213,000, down 1.9 percent from 2019 revenues of $317,210,000. Retail 
revenue was $262,878,000, which was 2.2 percent lower than 2019 revenue of $268,656,000, due to lower energy 
sales, primarily in commercial revenue related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Wholesale revenue was $30,105,000, 
down 6.9 percent from 2019 revenue of $32,323,000, due primarily to units not being operated as planned for 2020 
and an extended outage at Rokeby Generation Station. Other revenue was up 12.3 percent, primarily due to an 
increase in REC sales and miscellaneous revenue related to sales of natural gas capacity.  
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OPERATING EXPENSES 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 

 

 
Comparison of 2021 to 2020 
Operating expenses in 2021 were $278,532,000, an increase of 18.4 percent from 2020 expenses of $235,069,000. 
Purchased power and produced power expenses were $168,222,000, up 41.3 percent from 2020 expenses of 
$119,067,000, primarily due to increased produced power expenses during Winter Storm Uri. Depreciation and 
amortization expense was $35,926,000, down 8.4 percent from 2020 expense of $39,211,000, primarily due to a 
decrease of amortization of gains/losses. Administrative and general expenses were $51,111,000, up 1.3 percent 
from 2020 expenses of $50,474,000, primarily due to expenses related to buildings and grounds and employee 
health insurance. Operations and maintenance expenses were $23,093,000, down 12.3 percent from 2020 
expenses of $26,317,000, due to lower transmission expenses. Other non-operating expenses increased $406,000. 
Overall, net position increased by $49,239,000 in 2021 over 2020 due to operations discussed above. 
 
Comparison of 2020 to 2019 
Operating expenses in 2020 were $235,069,000, a decrease of 4.5 percent from 2019 expenses of $246,216,000. 
Purchased power and produced power expenses were $119,067,000, down 2.2 percent from 2019 expenses of 
$121,801,000, primarily due to reduced produced power expenses due to units not being called on to run as often 
as was budgeted. Depreciation and amortization expense was $39,211,000, down 25.9 percent from 2019 expense 
of $52,913,000, primarily due to the implementation of new depreciation rates based on the results of the 2019 
depreciation study. Administrative and general expenses were $50,474,000, up 12.6 percent from 2019 expenses of 
$44,828,000, primarily due to expenses related to buildings and grounds expenses for the new LES Operations 
Center (LOC) and employee health insurance. Operations and maintenance expenses were $26,317,000, down 1.3 
percent from 2019 expenses of $26,674,000, due to lower transmission expenses. Other non-operating expenses 
increased $828,000. Overall, net position increased by $35,243,000 in 2020 over 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



8 
 

RATES 
 
AVERAGE RETAIL RATES 
(CENTS PER KWH) 

 

 
LES’ average retail rates per kWh remain competitive as compared to the national average for retail rates (2021 is preliminary) according to the 

Energy Information Administration (EIA), U.S. Department of Energy. Average LES customer retail rates were 8.46, 8.49 and 8.43 cents per kWh in 

2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Based on the preliminary EIA data for 2021, LES’ retail rates were 23 percent below the national average. 

 
 

RATES COMPARISON 
 
In 2021, LES marked its fourth consecutive year without a system-wide rate increase. Additionally, a six-state 
regional rate comparison (prepared by LES) shows, when ranked among regional utilities, LES’ residential rates are 
the least expensive. The study showed LES’ annual rates for all customer classes remained among the lowest in the 
region. The regional rate comparison includes cities from Colorado, Iowa, Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri and 
Nebraska. 
 
 

CASH AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 
CASH FLOWS 

 
 
Cash flows from operating activities contain transactions involving customers, suppliers and employees. 
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Cash flows from noncapital financing activities primarily include transactions related to the payment in lieu of tax 
and City Dividend for Utility Ownership. 
 
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities contain transactions involving the acquisition and  
construction of capital assets and the long-term debt related to those assets. 
 
Cash flows from investing activities contain transactions related to security purchases and maturities and  
investment income. 
 
Comparison of 2021 to 2020 
Cash inflows from operating activities were $165,981,000, up $57,126,000 from 2020, primarily due to increased 
receipts from retail and wholesale sales. 2021 cash outflows from capital and related financing activities decreased 
$23,821,000 from 2020 as there were no significant financing transactions in 2021. Prior year financing activities 
included defeasance and refunding of long-term debt. Cash outflows for investing activities were $42,799,000 for 
2021. Cash inflows were $34,797,000 for 2020 for a year-over-year decrease of $77,596,000, primarily due to 
increased purchases of investments in 2021.  
 
Comparison of 2020 to 2019 
Cash inflows from operating activities were $108,855,000, down $10,979,000 from 2019, primarily due to reduced 
receipts from retail and wholesale sales. Cash outflows from capital and related financing activities increased 
$8,961,000. The increase from 2019 is due to 2020 financing activities which included defeasance and refunding of 
long-term debt. Cash inflows from investing activities were $34,797,00, which was $13,511,000 higher than 2019 
due to the sale of investments in 2020. 
 
 

FINANCING 
 
There were no bonds issued in 2021. 
 
In 2020, LES conducted several significant revenue bond transactions. On January 6, 2020, using available cash, 
LES defeased a total of $81,475,000 in revenue bonds, including $66,365,000 of Series 2012 and $15,110,000 of 
Series 2015. On January 22, 2020, LES issued $72,200,000 in tax-exempt bonds. Proceeds from the bond issue 
were used to reimburse LES for prior capital investments. These two transactions resulted in a net present value 
debt service savings of approximately $19,000,000 for LES customers. On September 23, 2020, LES issued 
$185,150,000 in taxable bonds. Proceeds from the bond issue were used to refund a total of $167,655,000 in 
revenue bonds, including $125,790,000 of Series 2012 and $41,865,000 of Series 2015. The refinancing allowed LES 
to restructure some of its debt and achieve a net present value debt service savings of $16,400,000 for LES 
customers. 
 
There were no bonds issued in 2019.  
 
LES uses its Commercial Paper Program to provide liquidity between long-term financings. LES’ Commercial Paper 
Program is authorized for $150,000,000. The commercial paper outstanding amount was $65,500,000 as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020.  
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During 2018, LES replaced its revolving credit agreement with The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi with a similar 
agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, dated August 24, 2018. The agreement was amended 
in 2021, extending the expiration date to August 19, 2024. The revolving credit agreement supports the Commercial 
Paper Program. There were no advances outstanding under the revolving credit agreement as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020. 
 
Simultaneous to entering into the revolving credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, LES  
entered into a Note Purchase Agreement. The Note Purchase Agreement was amended in 2021, extending the 
expiration date to August 19, 2024. The 2021 amendment to the Note Purchase Agreement allows LES to issue 
both Taxable and Tax-Exempt notes. Amounts outstanding under the Note Purchase Agreement reduce the amount 
available under the revolving credit agreement which supports the Commercial Paper Program. There were no 
amounts outstanding under the Note Purchase Agreement as of December 31, 2021 and $1,500,000 outstanding 
on December 31, 2020. 
 
LES entered into a revolving credit agreement with U.S. Bank National Association in November 2017 to replace a 
similar agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association. The revolving credit agreement permits LES to draw 
up to $50,000,000 on a variable rate basis and its expiration date is March 17, 2023. There were no advances 
outstanding under the agreement as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
 
The following chart shows outstanding debt as of December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 
 
OUTSTANDING DEBT 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 
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RATINGS 
 
Among other factors, the bond rating agencies assess an entity’s operations, stability of customer base and 
financial profile when determining an entity’s bond rating. Standard & Poor’s Ratings Group (S&P) and Fitch 
Investors Service, L.P. (Fitch) have assigned ratings to LES that are among the highest granted to electric utilities. 
LES is required to have ratings from two rating agencies. The following table provides the current ratings for 
outstanding debt. LES’ ratings have remained unchanged for more than 20 years. 
 

 S&P Fitch 

Revenue Bonds AA AA 

Commercial Paper A-1+ F1+ 

 
 

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE FOR REVENUE 
BONDS 
 

2.55    2.16    2.39 

2021     2020     2019 
 
LES’ bond ordinance establishes a debt service coverage requirement of 1.0.  
LES generally targets a minimum year-end debt service coverage of 2.0. 
 
 
The following table reflects the calculation of the debt service coverage ratio. The ratio reflects LES’ year-end funds 
available to pay its debt service. 
 
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO 
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
 
Capital expenditures for 2021, 2020 and 2019 are shown in the chart below. 
 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 

 

 
 
Significant capital projects during 2021 included the following: 
 Costs for Underground Rebuilds in 2021 totaled $7,211,000. This project rebuilds existing underground systems 

due to age, deterioration or other factors. 
 

 Costs for Underground Relocations in 2021 totaled $4,393,000. This project relocates existing underground 
equipment in conflict with non-LES projects and converts existing overhead to underground electrical facilities. 

 
 Final construction costs for the LES Operations Center (LOC) came in during 2021, totaling $2,637,000. The 

total project cost is approximately $104,000,000.  
 
 LES’ share of capital improvements at Walter Scott Energy Center for 2021 was $2,893,000. 
 

 Costs for Underground Residential Extension/Development in 2021 totaled $3,153,000. This project installs 
primary and secondary extensions to new homes, residential developments and apartment complexes. 
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 Costs for Underground Commercial Extension/Development in 2021 totaled $2,931,000. This project installs 
primary and secondary extensions to new or existing commercial customers. 

 
 Costs for Overhead Rebuilds in 2021 totaled $2,740,000. This project is for replacement or removal of 

deteriorated or obsolete facilities. 
 
Significant capital projects during 2020 included the following: 
 Construction neared completion on the LES Operations Center. Capital expenditures in 2020 for this project 

totaled $21,714,000. Phase One of the LOC, which includes a second LES operations center, was completed in 
2019. Phase Two, which includes the administrative building, was completed in November 2020. 

 
 LES is a 12.76 percent share owner in the Laramie River Station (10.5 percent available after ownership and 

participation sales). LES’ share of capital improvements for the plant in 2020 was $2,263,000. 
 

 The Duct Installation Project (DIP), which started in 2012, is a 9-year project to install over 600 miles of duct 
adjacent to distribution cable. The duct allows the 15-kilovolt (kV) underground cable to be replaced quickly 
when it reaches the end of its useful life. The project concluded in 2020, with capital expenditures for the year 
totaling $3,142,000.  
 

 Costs for Underground Rebuilds in 2020 totaled $4,744,000. This project rebuilds existing underground systems 
due to age, deterioration or other factors. 
 

 Costs for Underground Relocations in 2020 totaled $5,448,000. This project relocates existing underground 
equipment in conflict with non-LES projects and converts existing overhead to underground electrical facilities. 
 

 The West Lincoln Rebuild Project includes the construction of a new distribution substation to replace the 
previous 1930’s substation. Capital expenditures in 2020 for this project totaled $3,191,000. 
 

 Costs for Padmount Transformer installation in 2020 totaled $2,708,000. This project purchases and installs 
transformers in order to transform electricity into a voltage customers can use in their homes or businesses. 
 

 Costs for Underground Residential Development in 2020 totaled $2,660,000. This project installs primary and 
secondary extensions to new homes, residential developments and apartment complexes. 

 
 

FACTORS AFFECTING LES AND ELECTRIC 
UTILITY INDUSTRY 
 
SOUTHWEST POWER POOL (SPP) 
LES became an active member of the SPP Regional Transmission Organization on April 1, 2009. On March 1, 2014, 
SPP launched the Southwest Power Pool Integrated Market (SPP IM) to replace the Energy Imbalance Service (EIS) 
market that SPP had operated since 2007. Through its representation on various committees, LES continues to 
work with SPP members to identify ways to improve market operations and overall organizational effectiveness. 
LES’ participation in the SPP IM has been, and continues to be, successful. SPP and its members continue to adapt 
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to new regulatory expectations and make system improvements to be better prepared for events like Winter Storm 
Uri. 
 
CYBER AND PHYSICAL SECURITY 
LES continues to be heavily involved in cyber and physical security activities within the utility industry.  LES’ staff, 
including the chief executive officer, chief technology officer and vice president of Corporate Operations actively 
participate in cyber/physical security related industry groups some of which involve classified briefings. In addition, 
they work with industry and government representatives to address incidents and best practices to protect cyber 
and physical infrastructure, ensuring the reliability of the electric system.  In addition, LES’ chief executive officer 
serves as co-chair of the Electricity Sub-Sector Coordinating Council, a group of electric industry chief executive 
officers who meet regularly with their government counterparts to address policy-related activities and initiatives 
designed to improve the reliability and resilience of the electric grid, including cyber and physical security.  The LES 
Board’s Finance & Audit Committee receives regular updates related to cyber and physical security. 
 
RENEWABLE RESOURCES AND DECARBONIZATION 
The State of Nebraska does not have any form of a renewable portfolio standard. The electric utility industry 
continues to experience pressure from customers and regulators to incorporate additional renewable generating 
resources into generation portfolios. Although their intermittent production capability must be considered when 
assessing the reliability of the system, renewable resources can serve as a hedge against future fossil fuel price 
volatility and/or environmental regulations. In 2021, LES sourced approximately 34 percent of its installed 
nameplate generating capacity from renewable resources, which includes hydro, landfill gas, wind and solar, with 
the other two-thirds split evenly between natural gas and coal. LES’ 2021 energy production from renewable 
resources is equivalent to 43 percent of retail sales. At its November 2020 meeting, the LES Administrative Board 
adopted a 2040 goal to achieve net zero CO2 production from the generation portfolio. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS 
The electric utility industry repeatedly has been faced with new and proposed environmental regulations. The 
increase in legislation has been a major issue facing LES and all electric utility providers. LES continues to work 
diligently with industry groups and government representatives to help shape legislation and to implement cost-
effective means to comply with all regulations. Monitoring the rapidly changing requirements within environmental 
regulations is a priority for LES. The regulations we track are as follows: 
 

CARBON EMISSIONS FROM EXISTING POWER PLANTS 
The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has issued several versions of a plan to reduce carbon 
emissions from existing power plants. In its original form, the rule would have a significant impact on LES 
and the industry as Nebraska would be required to reduce its CO2 emission rate by 40 percent.  
  
On February 9, 2016, the U.S. Supreme Court stayed the rule. However, LES maintained its ongoing practice 
of analyzing power supply resource options that provide long-term financial benefits to its customers and 
position LES for compliance with carbon regulations in whatever form they may take. 
 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS FROM NEW, MODIFIED AND/OR 
RECONSTRUCTED STATIONARY SOURCES 
LES monitors this rule due to its impact on greenhouse gas emissions from new, modified, and/or 
reconstructed turbines. On January 13, 2021, the EPA published the Pollutant-Specific Significant 
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Contribution Finding for greenhouse gases, which established an alternative framework for evaluating 
emissions from power plants. However, this rule was vacated and remanded on April 5, 2021, under 
President Biden’s Executive Order 13990. 
 
CROSS-STATE AIR POLLUTION   
The Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR) was initially issued in 2011 to assist states’ compliance with 
ambient air quality standards by limiting downwind pollution. Under CSAPR facilities must provide 
allowances for emission of each ton of nitrogen oxide (NOx) and sulfur dioxide (SO2) emissions. Despite 
revisions to the rule in 2020, LES and partner facilities current operations were not affected.  
 
REGIONAL HAZE RULE  
The purpose of the regional haze regulations is to improve visibility by reducing regional haze in 156  
national parks and wilderness areas (Class I areas) across the country. Gerald Gentleman Station (GGS) 
and Laramie River Station (LRS) are impacted by these regulations. 
 
After analysis by the State of Wyoming in 2021, it was determined that additional controls at LRS were not 
necessary. GGS has submitted additional air modeling data pertaining to SO2 emissions, however no action 
has been taken.  
 
ACID RAIN PROGRAM  
Implemented in accordance with the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, the Acid Rain Program is intended 
to achieve environmental benefits through reductions in SO2 and NOx emissions. All LES-owned and 
contracted resources operate within the acid rain regulations. 
 
MERCURY AND AIR TOXIC STANDARDS  
In February 2012, the EPA issued the final Mercury and Air Toxic Standards (MATS) rule, which is intended 
to reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants from power plants. The MATS rule does not apply to simple-
cycle and combined-cycle stationary combustion turbines so Terry Bundy Generating Station (TBGS), 
Rokeby Generation Station (RGS) and J Street Generating Station are not impacted. 
 
GGS and LRS are subject to MATS and have installed mercury controls to comply with MATS. Ongoing 
compliance with MATS must be demonstrated by each affected facility. 
 
COOLING WATER INTAKE STRUCTURES STANDARDS 316(B)  
The EPA developed regulations under Subsection 316(b) of the Clean Water Act that will affect facilities 
with cooling water intake structures. The regulations are intended to ensure location, design, construction 
and capacity of the cooling water intake structures reflect the best technology available to minimize 
harmful impacts on aquatic life as the result of impingement or entrainment. 
 
Apart from GGS, all units LES owns or contracts with meet the requirements of this rule. At this point the 
GGS NPDES permit which contains the installation schedule for the intake screens is in draft form and 
expected to be issued effective April 1, 2022. 
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COAL COMBUSTION RESIDUALS PROPOSED RULE 
The Coal Combustion Residuals Proposed Rule (Rule) requires owners of unlined surface ponds to conduct 
initial monitoring to detect indicators that may signify a release of contaminant from a surface pond. If 
contamination was found, the Rule mandates closure or retrofitting of any unlined surface ponds if the 
contamination is not able to be attributed to another source. 
 
Basin Electric Power Cooperative (Basin), as the Operating Agent for LRS, has six designated Coal 
Combustion Residual (CCR) units. Basin hired a consultant to conduct detection monitoring in 2016 and 
2017. The consultant detected a Statistically Significant Increase (SSI) in one or more of the indicator 
constituents from an LRS ash pond. A Corrective Measure Assessment was completed on August 30, 2019 
with a Groundwater Remedy Selection Report issued in July 2020. Completion of all activities was 
scheduled for November 2021, with an updated analysis to be completed in March 2022.  CCR related 
activities for 2021 have not been made publicly available at the time this report was completed. 

 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of LES’ financial status for 2021, 2020 and 2019.  
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial  
information should be addressed to the Vice President and Chief Financial Officer at 9445 Rokeby Road, Lincoln, 
Nebraska 68526-9788 or by email at finance@les.com. 
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LINCOLN ELECTRIC SYSTEM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

Reporting Entity 

Lincoln Electric System (LES) is a municipal utility owned by the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (the City). LES is 
operated under the direction of the Lincoln Electric System Administrative Board, which is appointed by the 
Mayor and confirmed by the Lincoln City Council (City Council). The City Council, as required by the City Charter, 
reserves authority to set the rates and charges, to adopt the annual budget and to incur debt. LES’ service area 
covers approximately 200 square miles, including the city limits of Lincoln, as well as the surrounding 
communities and residential areas. 
 
In evaluating how to define LES for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all potential 
component units for which financial accountability may exist. The determination of financial accountability 
includes consideration of a number of criteria, including: (1) LES’ ability to appoint a voting majority of another 
entity’s governing body and to impose its will on that entity; (2) the potential for that entity to provide specific 
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, LES and (3) the entity’s fiscal dependency on LES. 
Based upon the above criteria, LES has determined that it has no reportable component units. 
 
The financial statements present only LES and do not purport to and do not present fairly the financial position 
of the City as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for 
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation 

LES’ activities are accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and use the accrual basis of 
accounting. LES’ accounting records are maintained in accordance with all applicable pronouncements of the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and generally follow the Uniform System of Accounts for 
Public Utilities and Licenses prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). LES prepares its 
financial statements as a business-type activity in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP). 
 
LES follows the provisions of GASB Codification Section Re10, Regulated Operations, which permits an entity 
with cost-based rates and Board authorization to include certain revenues or costs in a period other than the 
period in which revenues or costs would be reported by an unregulated entity to the extent that the rate-
regulated entity is recovering or expects to recover such amounts in rates charged to its customers. This 
guidance applies to LES because rates for LES’ regulated operations are established and approved by the LES 
Administrative Board and City Council. 
 
Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows of resources and disclosure of contingent assets 
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and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues, expenses and other 
changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

  
Revenue Recognition 

Electric revenues are recorded based on the related period of customer usage. Billings for electric revenues are 
rendered monthly on a cycle basis. Unbilled revenues, representing estimated consumer usage for the period 
between the last billing date and the end of the period, are accrued in the period of consumption. 
 
Cash Equivalents 

LES considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the date of 
purchase to be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, cash equivalents consisted of money market 
funds and commercial paper. 
 
Investments and Investment Income 
LES maintains various designated and restricted accounts (see Note 2) that are held for debt service 
obligations, future health claims and other items. Investments in money market mutual funds are carried at 
cost, which approximates fair value. Investments in U.S. treasury securities, U.S. agency obligations and 
commercial paper are carried at fair value. Fair value is determined based on quoted market prices or yields 
currently available on comparable securities of issuers with similar credit ratings. 
 
Investment income includes interest income and the net change for the year in the fair value of investments. 
 
Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are reported net of the allowance for uncollectible accounts of $2,789,000 at December 31, 
2021 and $2,508,000 at December 31, 2020.  
 
Inventory 

Materials, supplies and fuel inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is generally determined 
on a weighted-average basis. 
 
Jointly-Owned Facilities 

Plant operation assets related to the operation of Laramie River Station (LRS) and Walter Scott Energy Center 
#4 (WSEC #4) (see Note 7) are comprised of operating assets, primarily fuel and supplies inventories and 
operating cash. These assets are managed by the operating agents of LRS and WSEC #4 and are stated at 
cost. Operating expenses of LRS and WSEC #4 are included in the corresponding operating expense 
classifications in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
 
Capital Assets 

The costs of additions and betterments to the system are capitalized. Cost includes material, labor, vehicle and 
equipment usage, related overhead costs, and certain administrative and general costs. LES’ capitalization 
threshold was $5,000 in 2021 and 2020. 
 
Costs of labor, materials, supervision and other costs incurred in making repairs and minor replacements and in 
maintaining the plant in efficient operating condition are charged to expense. When plant assets are retired, the 
original cost and removal cost, less salvage, are charged to accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is 
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computed on a straight-line basis using composite rates ranging between .6 percent and 20 percent, depending 
on the respective asset type. 
 
LES implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred 
before the End of a Construction Period (GASB 89), for all new projects initiated in the 2021 fiscal year. This 
Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an 
expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic 
resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will 
not be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported, except as Regulatory Accounting treatment is 
utilized and interest cost is amortized separate from the underlying asset. 
 
In 2020, an allowance for funds used during construction was calculated for all capital projects exceeding 
$500,000 in total cost. The allowance for funds used during construction was based on LES’ true interest cost 
of the most recent borrowing, which was 3.2 percent for January and 1.6 percent from February to December.  
 
Deferred Loss on Refunded Debt 

Costs incurred in connection with the refinancing of various bond issuances are being amortized over the 
remaining life of the old bonds or the life of the new bonds, whichever is shorter. Amortization is recorded as a 
component of interest expense within non-operating expenses. The deferred loss on refunded debt balance 
was $12,546,000 and $17,044,000, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Recovery of Plant Costs 

Capital contributions are received from customers and other third parties primarily to offset the costs 
associated with expansion of LES’ electric system. LES follows FERC guidelines for recording capital 
contributions. These guidelines direct the reduction of utility plant by the amount of these contributions. In 
order to comply with GASB Codification Section N50, Non-exchange Transactions, while continuing to follow 
FERC guidelines, capital contributions are recorded as income and offset by an expense in the same amount 
representing the recovery of plant costs. 
 
Net Position Classification 

Net position is required to be classified into three components, which are net investment in capital assets, 
restricted and unrestricted. These classifications are defined as follows: 

 
Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included in this component of net 
position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt 
attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. 
 
Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through 
external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), contributors, or law or 
regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or 
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enabling legislation. Revenue bond funds and health insurance funds, net of any related liabilities, are 
included in this classification. 
 
Unrestricted — This component of net position consists of the net amount of the assets and liabilities that 
do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.” 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is LES’ policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted as they are needed. 

 

Classification of Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the ongoing  
operation of the electric system. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for electric service. 
Operating expenses include operation and maintenance, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 
 
Payment In Lieu of Taxes 

LES makes a payment in lieu of taxes, aggregating 5 percent of its electric retail revenues derived from within 
the city limits of incorporated cities and towns served. Payment in lieu of taxes are transferred to the city of 
Lincoln, Lancaster County, Lincoln Public Schools and the city of Waverly. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
$12,400,000 and $12,511,000, respectively, was accrued for the next payment in lieu of taxes. 
 
City Dividend for Utility Ownership (CDFUO) 
In 2011, the Lincoln City Council approved an ordinance requiring LES to pay an annual dividend to the city of 
Lincoln for the city’s ownership of LES. The ordinance states LES shall remit to the city a dividend for utility 
ownership in the system in an amount equivalent to 2.4 percent of the Total Net Position (Net Assets) of LES, 
as of December 31, based upon the most recent audited year-end financial statements in effect for the 
February payment. The ordinance further provides a cap on the payment such that once the amount of the 
annual dividend for any year exceeds $7,000,000, the amount of the annual dividend for the following year and 
each succeeding year thereafter would be increased annually by the greater of 2.0 percent or by the percentage 
rate by which the Consumer Price Index All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) has increased during the LES fiscal year 
upon which the dividend is based. The CDFUO payment exceeded $7,000,000 in 2015. In 2020, the Lincoln City 
Council passed an ordinance removing the cap on a go-forward basis. The annual dividend is remitted to the 
city on a semiannual basis on the 20th day of February and August of each year, with each payment 
representing 50 percent of the annual dividend payment. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, $3,459,000 and 
$2,950,000, respectively, was included in the accrued liabilities for the next CDFUO payment. 
 
The CDFUO is assessed on all retail customer billings and is treated as operating revenue on the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. LES records the estimated liability for the CDFUO as a non-
operating expense on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. 
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Note 2: Deposits and Investments 
 

Deposits 

State statutes require banks to either give a bond or pledge government securities to LES in the amount of 
utility deposits. The statutes allow pledged securities to be reduced by the amount of the deposit insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). LES’ cash deposits are insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC. 
Investments 

LES may invest in U.S. Government securities and agencies, federal instrumentalities, instrumentalities of the 
United States, repurchase agreements, corporate issues, money market mutual funds, interest-bearing time 
deposits or savings accounts, state and/or local government taxable and/or tax-exempt debt and other fixed 
term investments as designated in the LES investment policy. 
 
Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurements must maximize 
the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There is a hierarchy of three levels of 
inputs that may be used to measure fair value: 
 
Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 – Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; 
quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by 
observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 3 – Unobservable inputs supported by little or no market activity and are significant to the fair value of the 
assets or liabilities. 
 
Money market mutual funds are carried at cost and thus are not included within the fair value hierarchy. 
 
The tables displayed below present the fair value measurements of LES’ assets recognized in the 
accompanying financial statements measured at fair value on a recurring basis and the level within the fair 
value hierarchy in which the fair value measurements fall at year-end. 
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As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, LES had the following investments (dollars in thousands): 

 

        
Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. It 
is LES’ principal investment strategy to buy and hold securities to maturity, which reduces interest rate risk. 
  
Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. 
Corporate issues, state and/or local government taxable and/or tax-exempt debt and money market funds are 
the only current investment types that require a minimum specific rating. All such investments held as of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 met minimum credit ratings as required by LES’ investment policy at the time of 
purchase. Any investment which falls below the minimum credit rating requirements held in LES’ investment 
portfolio will follow pre-approved guidelines set forth within the investment policy. 
  
Custodial Credit Risk 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, LES would 
not be able to recover the value of its investment securities that are in the possession of an outside party. LES 
manages this risk by holding all investments in LES’ name, as required by LES’ investment policy. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk  

Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with the amount of investments LES has with any one issuer. 
Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are excluded from this requirement. LES’ 
investment policy places the following limits on the amount that may be invested in any one type of investment 
and/or issuer. 
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At December 31, 2021 and 2020, LES had the following investment concentrations: 

 

 
 
Summary of Carrying Values 

Deposits and investments were included in the following Balance Sheet captions at December 31, 2021 and 
2020: 

  
 

 

 

2021 2020

U.S.-sponsored agency obligations
Federal Home Loan Bank 0.00% 26.54%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1.41% 11.30%
Federal Farm Credit Bank 14.48% 0.79%
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Rate Stabilization Fund 
LES maintains a Rate Stabilization Fund (RSF) to provide a method of mitigating risks that may occur from 
unforeseen or one-time events which may have a significant financial impact to LES. It is not the intent to fund 
routine rate adjustments with funds from the RSF. Deposits and withdrawals of the RSF are subject to approval 
of the LES Administrative Board. The target RSF balance is determined by an annual liquidity study which 
evaluates the probability and financial impact of LES risks as determined through the Enterprise Risk 
Management program. 
 
The RSF balance was $37,164,000 and $37,170,000 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 

 
Note 3: Capital Assets 
 

Capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows (dollars in thousands): 
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt and Liabilities 
 

Long-term debt at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was presented on the Balance Sheets as  
shown below: 
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Long-term debt and liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were as follows 
(dollars in thousands).  
 

 
 

Debt service requirements for LES’ revenue bonds as of December 31, 2021 were as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 
 

  

All long-term debt is issued for the construction of additional utility plant, refunding of existing debt or to 
reimburse LES for prior capital expenditures. All utility revenues, after payment of operation and maintenance 
expenses, are pledged for the revenue bonds until the bonds are paid or defeased. 
 
Debt service for 2021 and 2020 was $49,687,000 and $53,901,000, respectively. Total gross revenues, as 
defined, for the same periods were $368,898,000 and $311,213,000, respectively. 
 

Revenue and Refunding Bonds 

There were no bond issuances in 2021. 
 
In 2020, LES conducted several significant revenue bond transactions. On January 6, 2020, using available 
cash, LES defeased a total of $81,475,000 of revenue bonds, including $66,365,000 of Series 2012 and 
$15,110,000 of Series 2015. On January 22, 2020, LES sold $72,200,000 of Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A. The 
bond issuance closed on January 30, 2020. These two transactions resulted in a net present value debt service 
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savings of approximately $19,000,000. On September 23, 2020, LES issued $185,150,000 of taxable Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020B. Proceeds from the bond issue were used to refund a total of $167,655,000 in 
revenue bonds, including $125,790,000 of Series 2012 and $41,865,000 of Series 2015. The refinancing allowed 
LES to restructure some of its debt and achieve a net present value debt service savings of $16,400,000 for LES 
customers.  
 
In September 2016, LES issued $116,645,000 of Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016.  Proceeds from the 
issuance of the 2016 bonds were used to refund the remaining Series 2007A and Series 2007B Revenue Bonds 
and a portion of the Series 2012 Bonds, fund a deposit into the 2016 Debt Service Reserve Fund and pay certain 
costs and expenses related to the issuance of the 2016 Bonds.  The refunding resulted in debt service savings 
of approximately $28,359,000 and net present value savings of approximately $19,000,000. 
 
As a result of the refundings, the assets and related liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in LES’ 
financial statements.  At December 31, 2021, $214,095,000 of refunded Series 2012 Bonds and $56,975,000 of 
refunded Series 2015 Bonds outstanding are considered defeased.. 
 

Bond reserves are set in accordance with terms stated upon issuance. All reserves are fully funded. 
 

Revolving Credit Agreement 

In November 2017, LES entered into a revolving credit agreement with U.S. Bank National Association. The 
agreement permits LES to draw up to $50 million on a variable rate basis. There were no amounts outstanding 
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. The U.S. Bank revolving credit agreement terminates unless extended in 
accordance with its terms, on March 17, 2023. The agreement is secured by electric revenues. 

 
Note 5: Short-Term Obligations 
 

Commercial Paper 

Established by city ordinance, LES may borrow up to $150,000,000 under a Commercial Paper Program. The 
payment of the Commercial Paper Notes is subordinated to the payment of the principal of, and interest on, the 
outstanding bonds. The commercial paper outstanding amount was $65,500,000 on December 31, 2021 and 
2020. The notes mature at various dates, but not more than 270 days after the date of issuance. The weighted 
average interest rate was .11 percent and .60 percent for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. The outstanding commercial paper notes are secured by a revolving credit agreement with 
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, which was amended on August 19, 2021 and now expires on 
August 19, 2024. There were no advances outstanding under the revolving credit agreement as of December 
31, 2021 and 2020. The revolving credit agreement which secures LES’ Commercial Paper Program also 
includes a Note Purchase Agreement which provides LES the ability to borrow monies on a short-term basis. 
There were no amounts outstanding under the Note Purchase Agreement as of December 31, 2021 and 
$1,500,000 outstanding under the Note Purchase Agreement as of December 31, 2020. Amounts outstanding 
under the Note Purchase Agreement reduce the amount available under the revolving credit agreement.  
 
LES uses Commercial Paper Notes as part of its long-term financing strategy. As such, commercial paper is 
typically renewed as it matures. The weighted average length of maturity of Commercial Paper for 2021 and 
2020 was 73 days and 154 days, respectively. 
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Commercial Paper activity for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows (dollars in 
thousands): 

 
Note 6: Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
 

Rates for LES’ regulated operations are established and approved by the LES Administrative Board and City 
Council. LES applies the regulated operations provisions of GASB Codification Section Re10, Regulated 
Operations, which provide for the deferral of expenses which are expected to be recovered through customer 
rates over some future period (regulatory assets) and reductions in earnings to cover future expenditures 
(regulatory liabilities). 
 
Regulatory assets are included in other noncurrent assets on the Balance Sheets and are being amortized in 
future rate periods when such costs are included in the revenue requirements to establish electric rates. 

 
The composition of regulatory assets at December 31, 2021 and 2020 was as follows: 
 

 

 
Regulatory liabilities are recorded as a deferred inflow of resources (reductions of future billings) on the Balance 
Sheets, representing revenues related to the outcomes of Winter Storm Uri and will be recognized in future rate 
periods when such revenues are included in the revenue requirements to establish electric rates. 
 

Note 7: Jointly-Owned Facilities 
 

Laramie River Station (LRS) 

LES is a 12.76 percent share owner of the Missouri Basin Power Project (MBPP) that includes LRS, a three-unit, 
1,710-MW coal-fired generating station in eastern Wyoming and a related transmission system. LES has sold 
approximately 28 MW or 13 percent of its ownership in LRS to Municipal Energy Agency of Nebraska (MEAN). 
Costs, net of accumulated depreciation and excluding costs allocated to MEAN for its ownership share, 
associated with LRS of $50,018,000 and $51,379,000, are reflected in utility plant at December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively. 
 
LES has a participation power sales agreement with the County of Los Alamos, New Mexico (the County), 
whereby the County purchases from LES approximately 10 MW or 5 percent of LES’ capacity interest in LRS. 
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The section of the agreement which provides for the County to pay LES monthly payments for the capital 
budget, processing and dispatch costs was amended in September 2016. The monthly payments are subject to 
true-up, each January 1 based on actual costs (as compared to budget) of LRS. The agreement remains in 
effect until either the final maturity occurs on any LRS-related debt or LRS is removed from commercial 
operation. LES billed the County $1,784,000 and $1,736,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, for demand and 
energy charges. 

 
LRS has certain post-retirement obligations which have not yet been billed to the owners as these costs are not 
due and payable. Thus, LES has not reflected these costs in its financial statements. As a co-owner of LRS, LES’ 
allocation of these post-retirement obligations was $1,653,000 and $1,574,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
GASB Statement No. 83 “Certain Asset Retirement Obligations” established accounting standards for 
recognition and measurement of a liability for an asset retirement obligation and associated asset retirement 
cost. In accordance with this standard, LES, as a participant in MBPP, recognizes asset retirement obligations 
for the reclamation of wells, landfills and ash ponds. LES recorded the following amounts as asset retirement 
obligations, which is offset with a deferred outflow of resources, on the Balance Sheet: 

 

 
 

Walter Scott Energy Center #4 (WSEC #4) 

MidAmerican Energy Company’s (MEC) Walter Scott Energy Center includes four coal-fired units. LES maintains 
ownership interest in 12.66 percent, or 104 MW of WSEC #4. The 811 MW, coal-fired plant was completed in 
2007. In order to minimize unit outage risk, LES executed a power purchase and sales agreement with MEC to 
“swap” capacity and energy from LES’ WSEC #4 ownership with capacity and energy from WSEC #3. Under this 
agreement, LES schedules 50 MW of capacity and energy from WSEC #3 and 53 MW of capacity and energy 
from WSEC #4. This 20-year agreement can be extended through mutual agreement of the parties. LES is 
responsible for the operation and maintenance expense and maintains a fuel inventory at the plant site. LES 
issued debt in conjunction with the construction of WSEC #4 and has capitalized these costs plus interest. 
Costs, net of accumulated depreciation, associated with WSEC #4 of $114,181,000 and $118,415,000, are 
reflected in utility plant at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 

Note 8: Jointly-Governed Organizations 
 
District Energy Corporation (DEC) 

DEC was formed in 1989 by the city of Lincoln and Lancaster County to own, operate, maintain and finance the 
heating and cooling facilities utilized by certain city, county and state buildings. The Board of Directors of DEC is 
comprised of five members: two appointed by the Lancaster County Board of Commissioners, two appointed 
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by the Mayor of Lincoln who must be confirmed by the City Council and one appointed by LES. No participant 
has any obligation, entitlement or residual interest. 
 
The DEC Board of Directors, under a management agreement, has appointed LES to supervise and manage the 
system and business affairs of DEC. LES is reimbursed for these management services based on the allocated 
actual costs of these services. LES also provides electric energy to DEC on an established rate schedule. During 
2019, DEC entered into an agreement with LES to migrate DEC business processes to the SAP Enterprise 
Software to create operational and administrative efficiencies. Under the agreement, costs incurred in relation 
to this migration were financed by LES at an interest rate equivalent to LES’ weighted average cost of capital, 
which was 2.462% and 2.949% for 2021 and 2020, respectively. The total amount of payments to LES for 
management operations and maintenance services was $2,194,000 and $2,331,000 in 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. The total amount of payments to LES for energy was $889,000 and $777,000 in 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. Between 2019 and 2020, the total costs incurred by LES in relation to the SAP Project were 
$555,000. The total amount of payments to LES for the SAP Project was $222,000 in 2021 and 2020. 
 

Nebraska Utility Corporation (NUCorp) 

On May 17, 2001, the City of Lincoln d/b/a LES, in conjunction with the University of Nebraska Board of Regents, 
created NUCorp. The purpose of NUCorp is to purchase, lease, construct and finance facilities and acquire 
services to meet energy requirements of the University of Nebraska Lincoln (UNL). The Board of Directors of 
NUCorp is comprised of five members: three members appointed by UNL and two members appointed by LES. 
No participant has any obligation, entitlement or residual interest. NUCorp is considered a component unit of 
the University of Nebraska, therefore, financial statements of NUCorp are included in the University of 
Nebraska’s financial statements. 
 
Operations commenced in January 2002. The NUCorp Board of Directors, under a 20-year management 
agreement, appointed LES to supervise and manage the energy supply and financial affairs of NUCorp. LES is 
reimbursed for these management services based on the allocated actual costs of these services. LES also 
provides electric energy to NUCorp on an established rate schedule. The total payments to LES for 
management services were $212,000 and $158,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. The total amount of 
payments to LES for energy were $7,346,000 and $7,212,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
Effective October 28, 2021, NUCorp and LES entered into a Termination of Services Agreement which 
terminates LES’ management agreement with NUCorp effective June 30, 2022. NUCorp is responsible for 
paying LES all sums necessary to satisfy all amounts owed to LES for costs incurred by LES up to the 
termination date and any services provided post-termination. Additionally, the Termination of Services 
Agreement includes agreement by NUCorp and LES that it is in the best interest of NUCorp for the non-profit 
and interlocal entity to dissolve on or after January 1, 2024 at which time all of NUCorp’s outstanding bonds will 
be called in accordance with the provisions of the bonds.  
 

Note 9: Employee Benefit Plans 
   
Retirement Plan 

LES has a Defined Contribution Retirement Savings Plan, created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401(k) (401k Plan). Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company serves as the plan custodian for the 401k Plan. 
The LES Administrative Board established the 401k Plan under its authority and is responsible for approving all 
amendments to the 401k Plan. LES’ contribution is equal to 200 percent of the employee contributions, up to 5 
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percent of applicable compensation for eligible employees hired prior to January 1, 2011. The contributory rate 
for eligible employees hired after that date is equal to 100 percent of the employee contribution, up to 10 
percent of applicable compensation. Vesting of LES matching contributions occurs over a three-year period, 
with LES contributions being 100 percent vested after three years of service. 

 
Employees who have not met the vesting criteria forfeit the employer matching contributions at termination, 
which are used to reduce LES’ future matching contribution obligations. Forfeitures reduced LES’ contributions 
by $57,000 and $52,000 in 2020 and 2019, respectively. Vested benefits are fully funded. December participant 
contributions of $205,000 and $190,000 were accrued in accounts payable as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 
 
Contribution information for 2021 and 2020 is shown in the table below: 

 
 

LES also offers all eligible employees a Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457(b) (457 Plan). LES’ 457 Plan custodian, Vanguard Fiduciary Trust Company, 
manages the 457 Plan’s assets. The 457 Plan permits the employees to defer a portion of their salary until 
termination, retirement or death. LES does not match any employee contributions to the 457 Plan. 
 
Assets and liabilities of the 401k Plan and 457 Plan are not included in the LES financial statements as all 
plan assets are held, managed and administered by the plan custodian, and the 401k Plan and 457 Plan are 
not considered to be component units or fiduciary activities of LES under the applicable accounting guidance. 
 
Employee Health and Dental Insurance 

LES has self-funded health and dental insurance programs with claims processed by a third-party 
administrator on behalf of the utility. A separate fund has been established into which accruals are made and 
from which actual claims and other program costs are paid. As part of the health plan, a reinsurance policy 
has been purchased that covers claims in excess of $150,000 per individual. Accruals to the self-insured 
account in excess of the claims and other costs paid are monitored by LES. 
 
Health care claims and fees incurred (prior to reduction for premium payments from participants) were 
$7,629,000 and $7,056,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 
As required by Nebraska law, LES maintains an Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) claims reserve which is 
actuarially determined. The balance of the IBNR reserve was $633,000 and $613,000 at December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively. LES established two separate bank accounts for the self-funded employee health and 
dental insurance plan reserves to ensure compliance with statutory requirements. Although not required by 
the statute, LES maintains excess insurance that limits the total claims liability for each plan year to not more 
than 125 percent of the expected claims liability, up to an annual aggregate maximum of $1,000,000. 
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Note 10: Derivatives 
 
LES utilizes Auction Revenue Rights (ARRs) and Transmission Congestion Rights (TCRs) to hedge against 
congestion costs in the Southwest Power Pool Integrated Marketplace (SPP IM). Awarded ARRs provide a 
fixed revenue stream to offset congestion costs. TCRs can be acquired through the conversion of ARRs or 
purchases from SPP auctions. ARRs do not meet the definition of a derivative because once awarded, they 
cannot be sold or assigned to another party. TCRs meet the definition of a derivative, however, LES’ TCRs 
meet the normal purchases and normal sales scope exception of the applicable accounting guidance 
because they are used by LES as factors in the cost of transmission. As such, GASB guidance for derivative 
accounting does not apply. Accrued liabilities included $1,288,000 and $567,000 for ARRs as of December 31, 
2021 and 2020, respectively. 
 

Note 11: Risk Management 
 

Insurance 

LES is exposed to various risks of loss related to liability and property. LES carries commercially available 
insurance, subject to certain limits and deductibles, to reduce the financial impact for claims arising from 
such matters.  
 
In December 2018, LES discovered damage to two generating units at the Rokeby Generation Station. Upon 
discovery, the units were taken offline to prevent further damage, and all interested parties were notified of 
the property claims. By the close of 2021, all repairs were completed to both units, final settlements were 
agreed upon and payments received. Excluding these two losses, LES has not experienced a claim exceeding 
commercial insurance coverage in the three preceding years. 
 
To protect against other risks, LES participates in the city of Lincoln’s self-insurance program, administered 
by the City’s Risk Management Division. Premium amounts are paid annually to the City’s Risk Management 
Division. LES continues to identify, evaluate and mitigate inherent business risks as part of its Enterprise Risk 
Management (ERM) Program. LES has implemented a formalized process to expand the scope of risk 
identification and awareness. Throughout the organization, divisions and departments are participating in the 
systematic risk identification and mitigation assessment process. 
 
LES has a Risk Management Committee (RMC), which includes representatives from each functional division. 
The responsibilities of the RMC include: coordination of risk identification across the organization, 
communication of ERM requirements to all employees and collecting information from, and presenting 
findings to, executive management. In addition to providing oversight of the ERM Program, the LES 
Administrative Board maintains a high-level awareness of significant risks facing LES along with their 
potential impacts and related mitigation strategies. In order to provide guidance to employees in their 
decision making, the LES Administrative Board has adopted the following as the risk appetite statement for 
LES: 
 

Risks will be managed in a manner that will not materially jeopardize LES’ ability to serve its customers, 
achieve its performance targets and maintain its AA-bond rating. LES has high standards of safety, 
regulatory, legal and ethical conduct. 

 
The active participation and engagement of the LES Administrative Board and executive management 
supports the success of LES’ ERM Program. A report reflecting the status of LES’ ERM Program is presented  
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annually to the executive team and the LES Administrative Board. The enhancements to the ERM Program 
will be ongoing and will provide increased awareness of risks throughout the organization. The information 
gathered will provide for improved planning and decision making and eliminate potential duplicative efforts. 
 
LES has a Commercial Risk Management Team (CRMT) to manage the risks associated with operating in the 
SPP IM. The CRMT provides general oversight of the financial, market and other risk exposures related to 
operating in the SPP IM. Members of the CRMT include the following LES employees: Energy and 
Environmental Operations Manager (CRMT Chair), Chief Executive Officer, Vice President – Power Supply, 
Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, Vice President & General Counsel and Supervisor – Energy 
Management. 

 
Note 12: Commitments and Contingencies 
 

Western Area Power Administration (WAPA) 

LES has an allocation from the U.S. Department of Energy, through WAPA, of firm power under contract from 
Upper Missouri Basin hydroelectric plants of approximately 54 MW. LES has also received an allocation of 72 
MW of firm peaking power from WAPA for the six-month summer season and 22 MW for the remaining 
months. In 2017, LES signed an amendment which extends the contract from 2021 through 2051. 
  
Participation Contracts with Nebraska Public Power District (NPPD) 

During 2021, LES had a participation contract in one existing NPPD coal-fired power plant that provided for an 
entitlement of 8 percent (109 MW) of the output of the Gerald Gentleman Station (GGS) power plant 
(nominally rated 1,365-MW).  
 
LES is responsible for its respective participating interests in GGS capital additions and improvements. LES 
recognizes its share of capital acquisition costs and debt service payments as power costs in the period the 
costs are billed, with the exception of costs approved for deferral under GASB Codification Section Re10, 
Regulated Operations. Fixed cost payments under the agreement are on a participation basis whether or not 
the plant is operating or operable. 
 
The participation contract for GGS continues until the facilities are removed from commercial operation or 
the final maturity occurs on the related debt incurred by NPPD to finance the facilities, whichever occurs last. 
The payments to NPPD under this contract, including capital additions and improvements, debt service 
payments, fixed costs and credits, were $10,193,000 and $7,661,000 in 2021 and 2020, respectively.. 
 
Through the participation contract, LES may be required to pay costs associated with compliance with 
environmental regulations for GGS. 
 
Other Power Purchase Agreements 

LES participates in three wind plants through direct Power Purchase Agreements with the plant’s developer/ 
owner: 100-MW Arbuckle Mountain Wind Farm in Oklahoma, 100-MW Buckeye Wind Energy Center in Kansas 
and 73-MW Prairie Breeze II Wind Energy Center in Nebraska. These wind energy facilities were placed in 
commercial operation in 2015. LES also participates in four Nebraska-based wind plants through Power Sales 
Agreements with NPPD: Laredo Ridge (10 MW), Broken Bow (10 MW), Elkhorn Ridge (6 MW) and Crofton 
Bluffs (3 MW). For each of these plants, NPPD has the actual Power Purchase Agreement with the wind plant 
developer/owner. 
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Commitments for Contracts over One Million Dollars  
LES has outstanding contract commitments totaling $4,464,000 as of December 31, 2021. These are 
primarily related to construction contracts of a carport and reel & transformer warehouse at the LES 
Operations Center, overhead to underground line conversions and the Rokeby Generation Station expansion. 
 
Claims and Judgments 

From time to time, LES is party to various claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of such 
matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and legal counsel that the 
likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the financial 
statements of LES. 

 
Note 13: Environmental Regulations 
 

Electric utilities are subject to continuing environmental regulation. Federal, state and local standards and 
procedures which regulate the environmental impact of electric utilities are subject to change. These changes 
may arise from continuing legislative, regulatory and judicial action regarding such standards and 
procedures. Consequently, there is no assurance that LES’ facilities will remain subject to the regulations 
currently in effect, will meet future regulations without retrofit, that LES can anticipate the outcome of current 
regulatory and legislative processes or will always be able to obtain all required operating permits. An inability 
to comply with environmental standards could result in additional capital and operating expenditures to 
comply, reduced operating levels or the complete shutdown of individual units not in compliance. As 
necessary, LES will make application to the appropriate federal and state authorities for any permits, 
certifications and renewals required by federal and state law and regulations for the operations of its existing 
plants and for the construction of capital additions and improvements.   
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Personnel and Organization Committee 
March 23, 2022 (Virtual Meeting) 

 
Employee Compensation Adjustment (Mel) 

• Discussed LES’ compensation philosophy in relation to current external market conditions 
• Discussed internal leading indicators regarding recruiting and retention issues 
• Discussed and concurred with a recommendation to implement a pay structure adjustment to 

align our compensation plan with current market data. That adjustment will also result in an “off 
cycle” pay adjustment for all employees 

• Mel and Emily will provide a similar presentation to that given at the March committee meeting.   
• Following the presentation and discussion, I will make a motion on behalf of the Committee for 

consideration of LES Resolution 2022-2 
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LES Compensation Plan 
Alignment with Market

Trish Owen- Corporate Operations Vice President
Emily Koenig- Vice President, Financial Services and Chief Financial 
Officer
Mel Palmer- Human Resources Manager
April 2022

1



LES.com

Market data related to the LES Pay 
Structure have changed significantly since 

Fall 2021
• Typically, the Pay Structure is adjusted annually based on market 

data provided by SilverStone Group
• Recommendation is based on World at Work Annual Survey data available 

in September and shared at the October committee meeting
• LES included market information received during the last compensation 

study to finalize the October 2021 pay structure
• The October 2021 Pay Structure Adjustment was on average 2%
• There was not a Pay Structure Adjustment done in January, as normal, due 

to the conclusion of the compensation study
• If we knew then what we know now, we would have done something 

different

• To maintain LES’ philosophy of paying at 50% of the market,* an 
adjustment is necessary

2

*LES sets its compensation at 50% of market for our jobs, meaning that generally 50% of external jobs pay 
higher and 50% pay lower than similar LES jobs
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• World at Work recently completed a “quick survey” 
which provides updated information for consideration

• SilverStone Group provided LES with similar metrics 
from other reputable sources

• Increases for 2022 will likely be 3.5 - 4% for merit and 3% for structure (Gallagher’s 
Labor Market Inflation Indicators for 2021-22 Report)

• Increases in base salaries in 2022 will surpass 4% for all groups included in a 339-
company survey (Pearl Meyer’s 2022 Projected Base Salary Increase Quick Poll)

3

Market data points to requiring a Pay 
Structure Adjustment

World at Work, “Salary Budget Quick Poll”- December 14, 2021, through January 3, 2022
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Local, Government Example
Lincoln Public Schools Example
• 2022/23 school year

• $1,250 base salary increase (Structure Adjustment)
• 4.11% increase in merit/benefits in addition to base salary 

increase based on years of service

• 2023/24 school year
• $1,000 base increase (Structure Adjustment)
• 3.65% increase in merit/benefits in addition to base salary 

increase based on years of service

4
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Additionally, leading indicators 
foreshadow continued hiring challenges

5

*Does not include Temporary, Transitional and Special Projects employees.

LES has experienced 
10 resignations so far 
for first quarter 2022.

3rd and 4th quarters 
usually see the most 
resignations

Top resignation reasons:
1. Compensation
2. Flexibility
3. No advancement 

opportunities
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Nearly 50% of LES employees are near 
retirement, increasing future hiring 

challenges

19.5%

28.6%

51.9%

Retirement
Eligible

Eligible in 5
years

Other

Note: Retirement for LES is defined as age 55 with 15 years of service or age 62 or older
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Leading indicators foreshadow 
continued hiring challenges

7

• Applicant flows have 
decreased 
significantly over the 
past year.

• Applicants frequently 
drop out of 
consideration due to 
finding competitive
employment before 
LES’ process is 
complete
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LES Pay Structure is lagging CPI

8

2.1%
1.6%
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2022 Pay Structure Adjustment was 
incorporated into the October 2021 

Compensation Study implementation.  
The structure increase was generally 2.0%.



LES.com

• In order to maintain LES’ philosophy of paying at 50% of the 
market,* an adjustment is necessary

• A 3% Pay Structure Adjustment effective April 16, 2022, is 
recommended

• Concurrent with the Pay Structure Adjustment, it is 
recommended that an Off-cycle Market Adjustment be made 
for employees

• An Off-cycle Market Adjustment of 3% would move all 
employees to the same percentage of mid-point for their 
position that they were prior to the Pay Structure Adjustment

9

*LES sets its compensation at 50% of market for our jobs, meaning that generally 50% of external jobs 
pay higher and 50% pay lower than similar LES jobs

Off-cycle Pay Structure and Off-cycle
Market adjustments are recommended
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The annualized budgetary impact of 
the Pay Structure and Off-cycle Market 

Adjustments are manageable

10

Increase in Payroll & 
Benefits (Union & 

Non-Union)

2023 Customer 
Rate Increase 

Impact
Annualized Operating Expense $1.3M 0.6%
Annualized Capital $0.3M
Total $1.6M

Forecasted 2022 Operating Impact  = $1.0M 

For reference, 2021 ended at $2.0M or 4% under the operating budget for 
payroll and benefits due primarily to increased open positions and turnover, this 
trend has continued in early 2022.



Exhibit IV 





Exhibit VII 



 
2021 CARRYOVER LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 52 Judiciary Committee 
 

(Lathrop) Provides civil immunity for injury or death resulting from COVID-19 
exposure, including for political subdivisions, if the exposure occurs after the effective 
date of the legislation. It is specific to the novel coronavirus SARS-CoV-2 or a virus 
mutating therefrom. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 54 Judiciary Committee 
Select File 

(Lathrop) Changes immunity for intentional torts under the Political Subdivisions Tort 
Claims Act and the State Tort Claims Act. The bill would allow for claims arising out of 
certain intentional acts that are the direct result of negligent failure to protect a 
person to whom the state or political subdivisions of the state, or their employees, 
owe a duty of care.  

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 71 Judiciary Committee 
 

(Wayne) Changes immunity for intentional torts under the Political Subdivisions Tort 
Claims Act and the State Tort Claims Act. The bill would allow for claims arising out of 
certain intentional acts committed by an employee or arising from acts committed by 
a third party as a result of negligence by the subdivision, state, or an employee. The 
bill would apply to certain previously dismissed cases and would add juvenile courts to 
a definition. The bill attempts to disregard the common law doctrines of issue 
preclusion and claim preclusion that, as they imply, preclude the re-litigation of an 
issue or claim that has been decided in a previous case. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 112 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
 

(Albrecht) Amends the Open Meetings Act to require that members of the public be 
allowed to speak at each meeting of a public entity. LES generally allows public 
comment at each meeting, although public comment was suspended for several 
meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic. While LES would not generally object to the 
requirement, provided a public entity retains the ability to adopt parameters for public 
comment regarding time limits and to maintain general decorum. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 120 
Judiciary Committee 

 
(Hunt) Prohibits discrimination based upon sexual orientation and gender identity. 

Support 

LB 133 
Revenue Committee 

 

(Erdman, et al.) Adopts the Nebraska EPIC Consumption Tax Act and EPIC stands for 
the elimination of property, income, and corporate taxes. LB 133 is a bold bill to repeal 
state income, sales, inheritance, and property taxes and replace them with a 
consumption tax.  

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 199 
Judiciary Committee 

 

(Vargas) Adopts the Face Surveillance Privacy Act and prohibits any governmental 
entity from obtaining, retaining, accessing, or using any face surveillance system or any 
information obtained from such system. The act seems fairly broad and would appear 
to potentially preclude the use of facial recognition as an internal cyber security tool. 
LES would be agreeable to restrictions and controls regarding how facial recognition 
information is stored or used, but does not support a broad ban that would include 
legitimate business uses. We will continue to visit with Sen. Vargas regarding the 
intent as well as confer with the City.  

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB52.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB54.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB71.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB112.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB120.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB133.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB199.pdf
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2021 CARRYOVER LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 212 
Executive Board 

 

(Cavanaugh, M.) Prohibits public entities from charging members of the Legislature for 
public record requests. LES has never charged a state senator for requested records or 
information and plans to continue that courtesy. However, if this provision were put 
into statute, there is concern that it could be abused. An individual could persuade a 
state senator to request records from the public entity for the purpose of avoiding 
charges they would otherwise incur under the act. A few years ago, during the retail 
choice discussions in the legislature, several public power entities received significant 
public records requests from an individual and his attorney. LES alone charged several 
thousand dollars for the labor to search and copy the requested records. For this 
reason, LES is opposed to LB 212 as introduced, but would be open to amendments 
that placed reasonable limitations on such requests to mitigate the potential for 
abuse. 

Oppose as 
Introduced/Confer 

with the City 

LB 228 
Urban Affairs Committee 

 

(Morfeld) Amends the Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Act to allow PACE 
financing to be retroactively applied to qualifying energy projects that have been 
completed.  

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 257 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
 

(Hansen, M.) Provides that any vacancy on the board of any public power district 
would be filled by the board of directors. Under current law board vacancies for a 
public power district that has 25 or more cities in its chartered service area are filled 
by the Governor. This bill has no impact on LES, but it will be monitored as it relates to 
the public power industry. 

Monitor 

LB 258 
Business & Labor Committee 

General File 

(Vargas) Adopts the Healthy and Safe Families and Workplaces Act to require non-
government employers to provide paid sick and safe time. The definition of ‘employer’ 
specifically excludes political subdivisions such as LES. The bill will be monitored for 
amendments. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 266 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(McCollister) Adopts the Renewable Energy Standards Act. It declares benefits of a 
clean energy standard and ultimately requires public power suppliers to achieve net-
zero carbon emissions by 2050 and the effective date of the act is January 1, 2022. It 
also provides that the requirement does not apply to a public power supplier if the 
board of directors of the supplier makes a declaration that compliance with the act will 
negatively affect the reliable operation of the supplier’s system. LES has consistently 
opposed statewide mandates that erode the local control of the LES Administrative 
Board and other locally elected or appointed public power governing boards. Such 
local control has already obviated the need for LB  266 as LES, OPPD, and NMPP all 
have carbon reduction goals equal to or more aggressive than that required by LB 266 
and NPPD is anticipated to have a goal in 2021. 

Oppose as 
introduced 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB212.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB228.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB257.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB258.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB266.pdf
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2021 CARRYOVER LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 290 
Business & Labor Committee 

General File 

(Cavanaugh, M.) Adopts the Paid Family and Medical Leave Insurance Act. It creates an 
insurance program to provide partial wage replacement for eligible employees to care 
for themselves or a family member following a serious illness or to care for a new child 
through birth, foster care, or adoption.  Leave can also be used for military need. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 339 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Bostelman) Requires a utility coordination plan for any contract in excess of $50,000 
for the construction or repair of a road or bridge. The bill provides that contractors 
may rely on such plans and be compensated by the relevant municipality for any costs 
or damages associated with any deviation from the plan. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 344 

Transportation & 
Telecommunications Committee 

Speaker Priority Bill 
Select File  

(Friesen) Amends the One-Call Notification System Act to establish an Underground 
Excavation Safety Committee. The committee would review complaints submitted to 
the State Fire Marshal alleging violations of the One-Call Notification System Act and 
make recommendations on resolving complaints. AM 1880 repeals the original 
provisions of the bill and replaces it with language that gives the State Fire Marshal 
authority to investigate One-Call Notification System Act violations, assess civil 
penalties, require continuing education regarding compliance with the Act, and 
promulgate rules and regulations. A hearing on AM 1880 was held on March 22, 
2022. If AM 2582 is adopted to AM 1880, the operative date of the bill would be July 
1, 2023. 

Monitor 

LB 346 
Revenue Committee 

 

(Wishart) Adopts the Fueling Station Tax Credit Act to provide a tax credit for any 
taxpayer who places in service during 2021 or 2022 a qualified metered-for-fee, public 
access recharging station for electric-powered vehicles. The credit is only available to 
newly installed stations. The credit shall be equal to 75% of the cost of any such fueling 
station. Unused credits may be carried forward for up to 5 years. 

Monitor 

LB 370 
Judiciary Committee 

 

(Sanders) Adopts the Personal Privacy Protection Act that prohibits a public agency 
from requiring an individual to provide personal information and also prohibits a 
public agency from requesting or requiring a contractor to provide a list of nonprofit 
organizations to which the contractor has provided financial or nonfinancial support. 
For purposes of this act personal information is defined as any list, register or data that 
identifies a person as a member, supporter, volunteer, or donor of a 501(c) nonprofit 
organization. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB290.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB339.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB344.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB346.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB370.pdf
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LB 409 
Executive Board 

 

(Brewer) Establishes a two-year moratorium on long-distance transmission lines 
prohibiting the commencement or continued construction of any transmission line 
project of 200 or more miles in length or expending any funds related to such project. 
The bill also establishes a special Electric Transmission Line Study Committee of the 
Legislature comprised of seven senators. The committee is directed to study various 
aspects of long-distance transmission lines and report its findings to the Legislature by 
December 15, 2022. 

Oppose 

LB 424 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
 

(Brewer) Provides that effective September 1, 2021, no wind energy generation 
project can be constructed unless the county in which the project will be located has 
zoning regulations or a resolution that indicates that certain factors have been 
addressed or considered, including setbacks and noise requirements. 

Monitor 

LB 433 
Revenue Committee 

 

(Revenue Committee) LB 433 is intended to increase the sales and use tax rate 
effective July 1, 2022. The Revenue Committee has not yet identified the revised tax 
rate. The bill will be monitored. 

Monitor 

LB 449 
Appropriations Committee 

 

(Wishart) Appropriates $100,000 from the General Fund to the Department of 
Environment and Energy for the Low-Income Weatherization Assistance Program to 
aid in conducting energy efficiency audits and weatherization improvements. 
Provisions of LB 449 were amended into LB 380. 

Support 

LB 455 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Friesen) Adopts the Broadband Pole Attachment Act to mandate a process for the 
attachment of any communication device to any electric utility distribution pole or 
within and duct or conduit.  The bill mandates that the utility make its easements 
available to a communications provider and, where necessary, obtain expansions of 
such easements to accommodate the communication service provider’s attachments. 
An electric utility is required to complete any necessary pole replacement or make-
ready work within 90 days of an attachment request from a communications provider. 
Disputes under the Act would fall within the jurisdiction or the Public Service 
Commission. LB 455 provides that a utility and a communications provider can 
negotiate a pole attachment agreement, but if the parties can’t reach an agreement in 
60 days the provisions of the Act will control. LB 455 is very favorable for 
communications providers making it unlikely they will negotiate a more reasonable 
agreement. LB 455 is incredibly onerous for electric utilities and potentially expands 
utility easements with no notice to property owners. In addition, it is far more onerous 
than the small cells legislation that was negotiated with wireless providers two years 
ago. LES will vigorously oppose LB 455. 

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB409.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB424.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB433.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB449.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB455.pdf
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LB 456 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Friesen) Adopts the Nebraska Enhancing Broadband Act. Similar to LB 388, this act is 
intended to facilitate $10 million in loans to fund the development of broadband 
networks in unserved and underserved areas of the state. The loans must be repaid if 
the recipient fails to complete a project by the agreed deadline. The bill does not have 
a direct impact on LES, but it will be monitored with the other broadband bills for the 
potential to amend in the pole attachment or collocation bills. Provisions of LB 456 
amended into LB 388. 

Monitor 

LB 460 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Brandt) LB 460 was introduced at the request of OPPD and is intended to facilitate 
broadband development by amending statutory provisions regarding the lease, sale or 
license of dark fiber to eliminate provisions that have been a barrier to dark fiber 
leases. The goal of LB 460 is to promote effective public-private partnerships between 
communications providers and public power entities that own fiber infrastructure. 

Monitor 

LB 467 
Urban Affairs Committee 

General File 
(Bostar) Adopts the 2020 National Electrical Code, updating the code from the 2017 
issue. Monitor 

LB 482 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
 

(Cavanaugh, J.) Prohibits the use of public resources made as a contribution to a 
candidate or committee, including a transfer made on behalf of a political subdivision 
in the form of affiliation assessments or membership dues to an entity which is then 
used as a contribution to a political candidate or committee.  

Monitor 

LB 483 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Cavanaugh, J.) Provides that the University of Nebraska will develop a strategic action 
plan to provide methods for adapting to and mitigating the impacts of climate change.  
It appropriates up to $250,000 from the Petroleum Release Remedial Action Collection 
Fund for the study.  The action plan is required to be submitted to the Governor & 
Legislature by December 15, 2022. 

Monitor 

LB 506 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Cavanaugh, J.) Changes statutory net metering requirements to raise the cap on a 
local distribution utility’s aggregate level of net metered capacity from one percent to 
three percent. It is LES’ position that net metering policies should be determined at 
the local level to account for disparate system characteristics and impacts on non-net 
metered customers. For this reason, LES opposes LB 506. 

Oppose 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB456.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB460.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB467.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB482.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB483.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB506.pdf
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LB 512 
Business & Labor Committee 

Committee Priority Bill 
General File 

(Brewer) Adopts the Critical Infrastructure Utility Worker Protection Act. The bill was 
introduced at the request of OPPD. The bill would ensure that critical infrastructure 
utility workers are provided priority access to personal protective equipment, medical 
screening and testing, medical treatment and vaccines in the event of any civil defense 
emergency, disaster, or emergency involving a severe threat to human health. Utility 
workers would have priority access at least equal to that of hospital and medical 
personnel, law enforcement personnel, or other emergency responders. AM 1620 
changes the definition of critical infrastructure utility work and references guidance 
provided by the Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency of the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security. 

Monitor 

LB 513 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Brewer) Beginning in 2022, LB 513 reduces the term of public power district board 
members from six years to four years. It also provides that a candidate for a public 
power district director must be a retail customer of the public power district. 

Monitor 

LB 520 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
General File 

(Friesen) Provide for the collocation of certain wireless facilities on utility facilities 
including, but not limited to, buildings, electrical transmission towers, poles, towers, 
water towers, and other structures capable of supporting the attachment of wireless 
facilities. It requires that any applications for collocation be reviewed in 60 days or it is 
deemed approved after 60 days. LES currently requires a structural analysis stamped 
by a structural engineer prior to agreeing to attachments to our towers. LB 520 would 
not allow such an analysis. Many of our towers are located adjacent to schools and 
arterial streets and we cannot allow modifications such as this without assurance that 
the tower can sustain the attachment without the danger of falling. We also cannot 
allow unfettered access to our substation and generating facilities where many of the 
LES towers are located. We will vigorously oppose LB 520. 

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

LB 539 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Walz) Prohibits a railroad from running a train in Nebraska that exceeds 7,500 feet in 
length. This would likely impact trains delivering coal to Gerald Gentleman Station or 
across the state to the Walter Scott generating plant. LB 539 raises interstate 
commerce clause issues. 

Monitor 

LB 543 
Judiciary Committee 
Senator Priority Bill 

General File 

(Brandt) Adopts the Agricultural Equipment Right-to-Repair Act. Requires the original 
equipment manufacturer of equipment sold or used in the state to make available for 
purchase by owners and independent repair providers all diagnostic repair tools and 
parts, documentation, or software updates. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB512.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB513.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB520.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB539.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB543.pdf
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LB 557 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
General File 

(Hansen, M.) LB 557 provides that law enforcement body camera recordings are public 
records. The bill also amends public records statutes to provide that public entities 
may not charge Nebraska residents or news media regardless of domicile who request 
records for the first eight hours of public employee time spent searching, identifying, 
redacting or copying requested public records. This is an expansion of current law that 
currently prohibits charging any costs for the first four hours. LB 557 further amends 
the statutes to provide that public entities could charge nonresidents of Nebraska for 
such time without a limitation on hours that may be charged. LES supports 
transparency, but LES customers should not have to bear the costs associated with 
public records requests. AM 1021 eliminates all provisions, except those relating to 
recordings from body-worn cameras that depict or record circumstances in which a 
person died while being apprehended by or while in the custody of law enforcement 
or detention personnel. 

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

Update: The 
adoption of AM 

1021 would remove 
LES’s opposition. 

LB 573 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Bostar) Amends state net metering provisions to clarify that the provisions are based 
on a rated capacity measure in alternating current. Some utility programs are based on 
direct current as current statutes do not specify inferring that either could be used. 
The legislation is designed to promote greater consistency among utility programs. 

Support 

LB 604 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Geist) Adopts the Nebraska Accelerated Broadband Deployment Grant Program Act. It 
is another bill to provide funding to promote broadband development across the 
state. The bill does not directly impact LES, but it will be monitored with the other 
broadband legislation. Provisions of LB 604 were amended into LB 388 by AM 530. 

Monitor 

LB 606 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Hilgers) This is an interesting bill that makes a technical change to the definition of 
“watt” in a section of statute, but doesn’t appear to substantively change the 
definition. LB 606 simply strikes the number “107” in the statutory definition of “watt” 
and replaces it with the words “one hundred seven.” Senator Hilgers staff indicates the 
bill is a placeholder for the Speaker, but he indicated it is not a placeholder for 
legislation impacting public power. 

Monitor 

LB 619 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
 

(Sanders) Changes excavation requirements under the One-Call Notification System 
Act. This bill was introduced on behalf of Build Omaha to exempt fine grading activity 
from the One-Call provisions. The intent of LB 619 is that fine grading would be 
exempted because LB 619 would require all utilities to bury deep enough that locates 
would not be required for fine grading. The utilities met with Senator Sanders and 
learned that the primary issue is with telecom companies who allegedly often don’t 
bury their cables even to the required 6 inches.  Senator Sanders will be working on an 
amendment to primarily focus on telcom companies. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB557.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB573.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB604.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB606.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB619.pdf
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LB 627 
Natural Resources District 

 

(Morfeld) Provides that a registered voter can vote for board members of a public 
power district with an annual gross revenue of $150 million or more if the voter 
resides within the incorporated or unincorporated area of a county that includes a city 
of the metropolitan or primary class within the chartered territory of the public power 
district. For example, a registered voter residing in Lincoln could vote for a member of 
the NPPD board. This bill does not directly impact LES, but it will be monitored. 

Monitor 

LB 683 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Wayne) LB 683 would significantly expand the scope of existing net metering statutes. 
Current law limits net metering to customer-owned renewable energy generation. LB 
683 would expand net metering to include gas-powered generators and combustion 
turbines. It also removes the 25 kilowatt cap and provides that net metering shall be 
allowed for an eligible project up to 110% of the customer-generator’s average annual 
usage. The only limitation on size would be if the utility can show a risk to its 
distribution system or grid reliability. In addition, LB 683 provides that a utility may 
only charge a monthly administration fee and may not charge any other fee for 
standby capacity, demand charges, interconnection or any other fee. LES was the first 
utility in the state to offer net metering and did so before net metering legislation was 
enacted. LES’ support for compensating customer-owned generation is exemplified in 
both the LES net metering rate the renewable generation rate. It is LES’ position that 
net metering policies should be determined at the local level to account for disparate 
system characteristics and impacts on non-net metered customers. Consequently, LES 
supports local control and opposes the expanded statewide mandate in LB 683 
because it eliminates that local control. 

Oppose 

LR 48 
Natural Resources Committee 

 

(Bostelman) LR 48 was introduced following the polar vortex in mid-February that 
required Nebraska SPP members, including LES, to shed load by implementing rolling 
outages on February 15-16. The load shedding was done to maintain grid stability and 
reliability throughout the SPP region. The resolution was to brief the committee on 
what caused the situation and to help them better understand the circumstances and 
practices within SPP that can lead to service interruptions. LES CEO Kevin Wailes was 
one of the five individuals invited to testify at the hearing. 

Monitor 

LR 102 
Natural Resources Committee 

Hearing March 16, 2022 
(Wishart) LR 102 provides that the Legislature take steps to combat the climate and 
ecological crisis. Monitor 

LR 130 
Executive Board 

 
(Hunt) Request cooperation regarding taking decisive action to minimize the impacts 
of climate change and to prevent further damage to our planet and our ecosystems. Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB627.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB683.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR48.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR102.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR130.pdf


 
April 12, 2022 

-9- 

 

 
2022 NEW LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 731 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
Hearing January 24, 2022 

(Cavanaugh, J.) LB 731 requires wireless providers to give advanced reasonable notice 
to adjacent property owners or residents prior to the installation of a small wireless 
facility, as well as requires compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
and all other applicable federal regulations.  

Support/Confer 
with the City 

LB 742 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Passed on Final Reading 

(Erdman) LB 742 allows public bodies subject to the Nebraska Open Meetings Act to 
keep an electronic record of their minutes, as opposed to the current requirement of 
maintaining a written version of meeting minutes. The need for this clarification is 
unclear, but we believe already complies with this provision. 

Monitor 

LB 743 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 09, 2022 

(Erdman) LB 743 amends the Nebraska Open Meetings Act to permit subcommittees 
of a public body to hold closed sessions. Additionally, LB 743 specifies that a 
subcommittee of a public body may only meet in closed session for the purposes 
identified in statute for closed sessions of the public body as a whole. It is unclear what 
prompted this legislation, but the Nebraska Attorney General’s guidance on the Open 
Meetings Act (OMA) has long opined that subcommittees of a public body that are 
comprised of less than a quorum of the body are not subject to the OMA. The intent is 
not clear, but LES is concerned that the bill would require subcommittee meetings to 
be open and public unless they meet one of the categories for closed sessions. Due to 
the confidential and proprietary nature of some LES information (e.g., market 
information) and the additional public notice requirements, this would be burdensome 
to implement. 

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

LB 751 
Appropriations Committee 
Hearing January 27, 2022 

(Arch) LB 751 removes the existing $20 million expenditure cap for the Economic 
Opportunity Program. This bill is part of an economic development program supported 
by the Lincoln Chamber of Commerce and the City of Lincoln.  

Support 

LB 775 Natural Resources Committee 
Hearing January 19, 2022 

(Brewer) LB 775 amends the Integrated Solid Waste Management Act to prohibit the 
disposal of wind turbine blades and their components in landfills. While LES has power 
purchase agreements with several wind projects, LES only owns two wind turbines. 
The matter of disposing of wind turbine blades is a continuing challenge 
nationwide and there is ongoing research and development regarding new 
technologies to deal with blade disposal. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB731.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB742.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB743.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB751.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB775.pdf
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LB 778 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing January 27, 2022 

(Brewer) LB 778 adopts the Government Neutrality in Contracting Act. In order to 
ensure neutrality in contracting, it essentially prohibits a government entity from 
including terms in its bidding or contract documents that prohibits or encourages 
collective bargaining agreements or that discriminates against bidders and contractors 
on the basis of their willingness or refusal to enter into collective bargaining 
agreements. The government unit may also not consider political affiliation, political 
activity, or demographic makeup, among other things, in scoring and awarding public 
contracts.  

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 804 
Natural Resources Committee 

Speaker Priority Bill 
Passed on Final Reading 

(Hughes) LB 804 increases the compensation cap from $20,000 per year to $35,000 
per year for the Nebraska Power Review Board (PRB) member who represents 
Nebraska on the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) Regional State Committee (RSC). LES 
believes it is important for the PRB to remain engaged with SPP and is supportive 
of this increase to allow full engagement by the PRB representative to the SPP RSC. 

Support 

LB 820 
Urban Affairs Committee 

Speaker Priority Bill 
Passed on Final Reading 

(Hansen, M.) LB 820 increases the population threshold for a City of the Metropolitan 
Class to 400,000 or more inhabitants and changes the population threshold for a 
Primary Class City to having more than 100,000 and less than 400,000 inhabitants. This 
does not have a direct impact on LES, but it will be monitored as it impacts cities of the 
primary class generally. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 821 Urban Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 22, 2022 

(Hansen, M.) LB 821 adopts the Aid to Municipalities Act to provide grants to 
municipalities to pay for infrastructure projects. The bill specifically includes, among 
other things, transmission lines in the definition of ‘infrastructure project.’ It includes 
an annual appropriation of $15 million for the Aid to Municipalities Fund. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 837 Urban Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 15, 2022 

(Hunt) Requires the Director of Environment and Energy to inform the Chairperson of 
the Urban Affairs Committee upon its review of the Nebraska Energy Code and its 
determination whether it is appropriate to revise the Nebraska Energy Code. 

Monitor 

LB 884 
Transportation & 

Telecommunications Committee 
Hearing January 25, 2022 

(Cavanaugh, M.) LB 884 amends the One-Call Notification Systems Act to require that 
advance notice be provided by an excavator to a private residential property owner 
prior to any excavation occurring. LB 908 also holds an excavator who fails to give 
proper notice liable for any damage done to an underground facility. It appears that 
this bill is intended to address potential dig-ins of private sewer lines by excavators. 
However, the notification process required by the bill could only be achieved if the 
private sewer line is registered with the One Call Notification System operator. This 
matter should be discussed further with the One Call Notification System advisory 
board. 

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB778.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB804.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB820.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB821.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB837.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB884.pdf
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LB 908 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Passed on Final Reading 

(McDonnell) LB 908 allows a public body to hold a meeting by virtual conferencing if 
(1) the purpose of the virtual meeting is to discuss items that are scheduled to be 
discussed or acted upon at a subsequent non-virtual open meeting of the public body; 
(2) no action is taken by the public body at the virtual meeting; and (3) advanced 
notice must be given, and accommodations must be provided to meet the public’s 
right to attend at a physical site. There are no limitations regarding how frequently a 
public body could utilize this provision. Considering LES meets monthly, it would not 
seem to provide much benefit to LES.  

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 939 

Revenue Committee 
Committee Priority Bill 

Selected File 

(Linehan) LB 939 cuts the state’s top individual income tax rate from the current rate 
of 6.84% to 5.84% beginning in tax year 2025 for an individual income of $29,000 and 
over or $58,000 and over for anyone married filing jointly. Provisions of LB 938 were 
amended into this bill, which cuts the state’s top corporate income tax rate for 
incomes in excess of $100,000.00 in four steps from the current 7.5% to 5.84% 
beginning in tax year 2026. 

Monitor 

LB 944 Revenue Committee 
Hearing February 25, 2022 

(McCollister) LB 944 would replace the current sales tax on electricity with a tax levied 
on electricity service that is based on the statewide carbon intensity 
factor (SCIF) which would be annually determined by the Tax Commissioner, based on 
carbon intensity factors provided by each provider in the state. The tax would apply 
beginning in 2024 and the percentage for the year would be based on the percentage 
change in the SCIR compared to the 2023 SCIF. It is not clear how carbon intensity 
factor is calculated. In addition, it seems to not fully reward customers of a utility that 
has moved more aggressively to reduce its carbon intensity though they would pay 
less compared to the current sales tax structure. 

Monitor 

LB 969 Appropriations Committee 
Hearing February 16, 2022 

(Dorn) LB 969 appropriates $10 million of Nebraska’s allocation from the American 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds for grants for electric infrastructure projects including 
advanced metering technology.  Grants would be administered through the Nebraska 
Department of Environment and Energy. Qualifying projects could receive up to $2 
million. This bill was introduced at the request of OPPD. 

Monitor 

LB 1002 
Appropriations Committee 

Hearing March 2, 2022 

(McDonnell) LB 1002 appropriates $2 million of Nebraska’s allocation from the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) for low-income home energy assistance. Of the 
funds, $1 million is appropriated for use by the Metropolitan Utilities District, and $1 
million is appropriated for use by OPPD. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB908.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB939.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB944.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB969.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1002.pdf
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LB 1008 
Government, Military & Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 11, 2022 

(Albrecht) LB 1008 prohibits any county, city, or village from enacting or implementing 
any ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or policy that effectively prohibits the 
connection or reconnection of any electric, natural gas, propane, or other energy 
utility service provided by a municipality, public power district, public power and 
irrigation district, electric cooperative, electric membership corporation or association, 
natural gas public utility, or other public utility. LB 1008 seeks to prevent a city from 
banning natural gas services, but the language is so broad that it potentially prevents 
utilities like LES from enacting or enforcing policies regarding disconnects and 
reconnects for nonpayment, among other things.    

Oppose/Confer with 
City 

LB 1045 

Natural Resources Committee 
Committee Priority Bill 

General File 

(Bostelman) LB 1045 eliminates existing statutory language that prohibits high level 
managers of a public power district from serving on a board of any public power 
district. LB 1045 does not impact LES, but it will be monitored as it relates to the public 
power industry. Provisions of LB 1047 and LB 1058 were amended into LB 1045. We 
oppose including LB 1058 in the bill. We are in partial support of the provisions of LB 
1047 but have continuing concerns. 

Oppose as 
Amended 

LB 1046 
Natural Resources 

Hearing January 27, 2022 

(Bostelman) LB 1046 changes districts and board members for NPPD and OPPD only, 
beginning in 2024. The bill provides that each board will be comprised of nine 
members – four elected members representing districts of equal population and five 
members appointed by the Governor. One of the appointed members must reside 
three or more miles outside of the corporate limits of any metropolitan class city, 
primary class city, or city of the first class. Appointed members may serve one 
successive term for a total of 12 years. Term limits do not appear to apply to elected 
members. Additionally, LB 1046 allows the Governor to appoint the CEO for NPPD and 
OPPD, who will be employed by the district but serve at the pleasure of the Governor. 
However, current CEOs with an existing contract are grandfathered, until the contract 
expires. The bill does not directly impact LES, but LES views the bill as a significant 
erosion of local control which is one of the cornerstones of public power. 

Oppose 

LB 1047 
Natural Resources Committee 

Hearing January 27, 2022 

(Bostelman) LB 1047 changes the requirements for the annual load and capability 
report that is prepared and submitted by the Nebraska Power Association (NPA) to the 
Nebraska Power Review Board. The bill requires a reliability forecast, but seemingly 
only for NPPD and OPPD since they’re the only entities covered under the definition of 
reliability. LB 1047 has several provisions related to firm electric generation resource 
forecasts and fuel supply availability that apply to LES. LES opposes the bill as 
introduced but is open to further discussion with the committee to address the scope 
of the load and capability report. Provisions of LB 1047 were amended into LB 1045. 
Refer to LB 1045 for future updates. 

Oppose as 
introduced 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1008.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1045.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1046.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1047.pdf
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2022 NEW LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 1056 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
WITHDRAWN 

(Brewer) LB 1056 grants counties zoning authority over industrial wind turbines. 
Anyone who erects, constructs, reconstructs, alters, repairs, converts, or provides 
maintenance to an industrial wind turbine in violation of LB 1056 or an applicable 
county zoning resolution commits a misdemeanor. Anyone who erects, constructs, 
reconstructs, alters, repairs, converts, or provides maintenance to an industrial wind 
turbine prior to obtaining a permit shall be guilty of a Class III misdemeanor. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 1058 
Natural Resources Committee 

Hearing January 28, 2022 

(Brewer) LB 1058 requires a public power supplier to pay five years’ severance to any 
employee who is terminated or laid off as a result of the supplier retiring, shutting 
down, or altering the capacity of a base load unit in a manner that results in laying off 
employees prior to the end of the unit’s “contract life.” Additionally, LB 1058 requires 
continued  payments in lieu of taxes for 10 years or a total of $50 million, whichever is 
greater. There are several provisions of this bill that are unclear or not defined. LES 
does not own any base load generation that would seem to be impacted by LB 1058, 
but we will continue to monitor the bill. The retirement of a major base load unit 
raises many operational and financial considerations, especially with regard to 
employees whose jobs may be displaced, but it is LES’s position that these matters 
should be determined locally between the utility, its board, its employees, and the 
local community. Provisions of LB 1058 were amended into LB 1045. Refer to LB 1045 
for future updates. 

Oppose 

LB 1099 

Natural Resources Committee 
Approved by the Governor 

March 16, 2022 

(Bostelman) LB 1099 creates the Nebraska Hydrogen Hub Industry Work Group to 
include the Director of the Department of Economic Development and representatives 
from manufacturing or industry, agriculture, transportation, and energy sectors. The 
objective of the group is to develop a competitive proposal to U.S. DOE with the goal 
of being selected as one of four regional clean hydrogen hubs in the country. 

Support 

LB 1100 
Appropriations Committee 
Hearing February 16, 2022 

(Bostelman) LB 1100 appropriates $1 million of Nebraska’s allocation from the federal 
American Rescue Plan Act funds to conduct a feasibility study of the potential for new 
advanced nuclear reactors in Nebraska, including siting options. 

Support 

LB 1134 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 25, 2022 

(Morfeld) LB 1134 would define public resources and personnel to include a member 
of a board of directors or an employee of a corporation organized under the Electric 
Cooperative Corporation Act. The bill does not impact LES, but it will be monitored as a 
public power industry bill. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1056.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1058.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1099.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1100.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1134.pdf
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2022 NEW LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 1139 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 25, 2022 

(Hansen, M.) LB 1139 would prohibit an IRS certified 501(c)(12) corporation from 
making any expenditures or contributions to a campaign for or against the election of 
a candidate, campaign for or against a ballot question, or in support or opposition of 
any legislative proposal. With regard to the public power industry, the Nebraska 
Electric Generation & Transmission Cooperative would be impacted by these 
provisions. The bill does not impact LES, but it will be monitored as a public power 
industry bill. 

Monitor 

LB 1146 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 11, 2022 

(Friesen) LB 1146 amends the Interlocal Cooperation Act to provide that only members 
of the governing bodies of the public agencies that are party to the interlocal 
agreement may serve on the board. It also provides that no joint entity under the Act 
may issue bonds for any building or infrastructure project unless approved by all 
eligible voters of each party of the joint entity. This bill would have a significant 
detrimental impact on the District Energy Corporation. 

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

LB 1149 
Transportation and 

Telecommunications Committee 
Hearing February 22, 2022 

(Friesen) LB 1149 increases registration fees for alternative fuel vehicles from $75 in 
2022 to $93 in 2023, $111 in 2024, $130 in 2025, $145 in 2026, and $150 in 2027 and 
thereafter. The purpose of the legislation is to address the decrease in gas tax revenue 
that will occur as the penetration of alternative-fueled vehicles, such as EVs, increases. 

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 1153 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 
Hearing February 3, 2022 

(McCollister) LB 1153 adds two members to the State Electrical Board. The two 
additional members must be a journeyman electrician and an electrical contractor or 
master electrician. LES will monitor the bill. 

Monitor 

LB 1166 
Transportation and 

Telecommunications Committee 
Hearing February 14, 2022 

(Sanders) LB 1166 amends the statewide One Call Notification Act to provide that an 
excavator will not be strictly liable under the Act for repairs to an underground 
telecommunications line that is buried at a depth of less than 10 inches or more than 
12 inches from a building. The bill is responsive to continued concerns Senator Sanders 
has heard regarding some telecommunications providers who fail to bury their 
facilities at required depths.  

Monitor/Confer 
with the City 

LB 1185 
Natural Resources Committee 

Hearing February 10, 2022 

(Morfeld) LB 1185 requires that any corporation organized pursuant to the Electric 
Cooperative Corporation Act must provide electric energy at retail. It appears that the 
only entity that would be impacted by the bill is the Nebraska Electric Generation & 
Transmission Cooperative which does not provide retail electricity. The bill does not 
impact LES, but it will be monitored as a public power industry bill. 

Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1139.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1146.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1149.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1153.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1166.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1185.pdf
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2022 NEW LEGISLATION IMPACTING LES 

 
LEGISLATIVE 

BILL 
STATUS OF 

LEGISLATION 
SUMMARY OF 
LEGISLATION 

LES 
POSITION 

LB 1208 
Transportation and 

Telecommunications Committee 
Hearing February 15, 2022 

(Friesen) LB 1208 adopts the Broadband Pole Replacement Fund Act. It includes an 
appropriation of $15 million of Nebraska’s allocation from the federal American 
Rescue Plan Act funds to provide reimbursement  for poles that need to be replaced to 
accommodate additional pole attachments to provide broadband service in unserved 
areas. The bill does not appear to impact LES as it is unlikely that any of the LES service 
area would be deemed an ‘unserved’ broadband area. However, LES has concerns 
about the legislation in light of other pole attachment and replacement legislation that 
is pending in committee. In addition, the provisions establish a precedent that would 
be problematic if the scope of the bill was expanded.  

Oppose/Confer with 
the City 

LB 1234 
Transportation and 

Telecommunications Committee 
Indefinitely Postponed 

(Friesen) LB 1234 essentially expedites the ability of a telecommunications carrier to 
secure a wire-crossing permit across railroad right-of-way. The bill would amend 
statutory provisions to allow the Public Service Commission to authorize the permit if 
the railroad carrier fails to respond to the telecommunications carrier’s application 
within 30 days. The bill does not directly impact LES, but staff is evaluating whether 
LES could benefit from a similar provision. 

Monitor 

LB 1255 
Appropriations Committee 

Hearing March 3, 2022 

(Bostar, Flood) LB 1255 appropriates $150,000 from Nebraska’s allocation from the 
federal American Rescue Plan Act funds directed to the University of Nebraska to 
update its 2014 Assessing Climate Change report, with the updated report due to the 
Legislature by December 1, 2024. 

Support 

LB 1257 
Appropriations Committee 
Hearing February 23, 2022 

(Bostar) LB 1257 would appropriate $10,000,000 in federal funds to the Nebraska 
Department of Transportation to establish a grant program for electric vehicle direct-
current fast-charging stations. As written, only private individuals or entities would be 
eligible. However, amendments could be considered to allow public power to be 
eligible. 

Monitor 

LR 355 Natural Resources Committee (Bostelman) LR 355 is an interim study to examine and review Chapter 70 of the 
Nebraska Statutes relating to power districts and corporations. Monitor 

LR 363 Natural Resources Committee (Bostelman) LR 363 is an interim study to examine the reprocessing and recycling of 
spent nuclear fuel. Monitor 

LR 376 
Government, Military and Veterans 

Affairs Committee 

(Hansen, M.) LR 376 is an interim study to determine whether reports of the resistance 
of public agencies to fulfill public records requests are representative of a broad 
statewide issue or represent isolated incidents. 

Monitor 

LR 394 Natural Resources Committee (Cavanaugh, J.) LR 394 is an interim study to examine potential changes to Nebraska’s 
net metering policy. Monitor 

LR 401 
Transportation and 

Telecommunications Committee 
(Friesen) LR 401 is an interim study to review the administration of the Nebraska 
Broadband Act. Monitor 

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1208.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1234.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1255.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LB1257.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR355.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR363.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR376.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR394.pdf
https://nebraskalegislature.gov/FloorDocs/107/PDF/Intro/LR401.pdf
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Power Supply Division
2022 First Quarter Update

April 15, 2022

Jason Fortik
Vice President, Power Supply



LES.com

Q1 2022 Net Power Costs are about $930k (3.8%) below Budget. 
Higher market energy revenue and transmission revenue essentially 

offset higher market energy expenses.
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Slightly colder temperatures later in the quarter, tight global 
markets, and concerns related to the European situation kept 

upward pressure on prices, but limits on LNG export capability 
tempered the domestic market impacts.

Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration – Henry Hub Natural Gas Spot Price 
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Lincoln’s market electricity prices posted mixed results, with 
higher natural gas prices and slightly higher footprint loads 

pushing up prices, while increased wind production and fewer 
generators on outage exerted downward pressure on prices.
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Q1 temperatures were near expectations, with February and 
March heating degree days slightly more than 1% above normal.
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Control Area Energy consumption for Q1 was
20 GWh (2.3%) above Budget.
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February’s 601 MW demand tied the 2018 winter peak, but 
fell short of February 2021’s all time winter peak of 624 MW.

2022 Peak Load Day = 601 MW, 2/23/2022
All Time System Peak = 786 MW, 8/1/2011

System Peak 
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Q1 renewable energy production was about 1% below expectations.  
Production from our traditional resources was nearly 16% below 

Budget due mostly to reduced output from Laramie and the Walter 
Scott units.

Renewable Energy 
Production

2022 Renewable Energy Production Expressed 
as a Percentage of Retail Sales:

Forecast = 52.4%
Actual = 50.3%
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The generating fleet posted fairly high availability performance for 
Q1, although Terry Bundy Unit 1 experienced outage time for 

natural gas supply limitations and J Street was out of service for 
control system upgrades and a cooling fan failure.
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Renewable
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The amount of nameplate wind generating capacity in the SPP footprint has 
grown considerably over the last several years, while nameplate coal has 

declined and other resource types are relatively stable.

Natural Gas
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The installed nameplate capacity of wind has grown by 
120% since 2015 while coal nameplate capacity has 

decreased by nearly 21%.

14,929

(5,922)

(10,000)

(5,000)

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Ch
an

ge
 in

 N
am

ep
la

te
 G

en
er

at
in

g 
Ca

pa
ci

ty
 (M

W
) 

Wind Coal Natural Gas Hydro Nuclear Oil Solar Other



LES.com

From 2017 to 2020, the accredited generating capacity 
in the footprint has decreased by nearly 5%.
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The general trends indicate that although Nameplate 
Capacity in the footprint has increased, Accredited 

Capacity has declined.
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LES.com

March 2022
Year to Date Financial Update

Results are favorable due to higher than 
budgeted revenues combined with 

lower expenses.

Emily N. Koenig
Vice President & CFO

Administrative Board
April 15, 2022
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Retail Revenue 3% above budget primarily due to 
higher energy usage in Residential and Commercial 

classes
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All cost categories see lower than budgeted 
year-to-date results
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Estimated increases in expenses result in year-end 
Net Revenue forecasted slightly below budget

$4.1 
$8.7 

$32.8 $31.4 

2022 Year to Date Budget 2022 Year to Date Actual 2022 Year End Budget 2022 Year End Forecast

4

D
ol

la
rs

 in
 M

ill
io

ns



LES.com

Year-end financial metrics forecasted close to budget

5

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Budget 2.15x
Current Forecast 2.13x

Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio (monitored by Standard & Poor’s)

Budget 1.48x
Current Forecast 1.46x

Net Debt Ratio (monitored by Fitch Ratings)

Budget 6.02x
Current Forecast 5.87x

Higher is better

Higher is better

Lower is better
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Projections indicate a year-end capital 
forecast that is $1.5M above budget

$0.5 $1.0
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Budget Variance

($ in Millions)
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6
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April Forecast $47.7M
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LES.com

Performance Indicators

First Quarter 2022
Administrative Board

April 15, 2022

1
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Integrity & Fiscal Responsibility

2

1 2022 Peer Study Average
*Numbers represent 2022 1st Quarter unless specifically notated as YTD or YE in Performance Indicator title

Performance Indicator Actual/ 
Projection

Forecast/ 
Target Indicator

Previous Year 
Actual/ 

Projection *

Industry 
Average

Retail Energy Sales (GWH) 811 787 809

Projected Debt Coverage (YE) 2.13 2.15 2.55 2.151

Net Power Costs ($/MWH) 37.23 38.81 34.18

SPP Lincoln Locational Marginal Price ($/MWH) 22.23 19.83 180.91

Phishing Test Click Rate 0.60% <5% 5% < 5%

Suspicious Emails 1,318 2,557

Cyber Events Reported (Opened/Closed) 128 287/287

Cyber Security Risk Assessments (New/Open/Closed) 13/5/11 12/4/10
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Sustainability and Environmental 
Responsibility

3

Performance Indicator Actual/ 
Projection

Forecast/ 
Target Indicator

Previous Year 
Actual/ 

Projection *

Industry 
Average

Sustainable Energy Program (Obligated YTD $) $0.40M $0.40M $0.30M

SEP Demand Reduction (YTD MW) 3.5 3.5 3.0

Renewable Energy (% of Retail Sales) 3 50.4% 52.4% 43%

CO2 Emissions (Thousands of Metric Tons) 3,4 465 564 NA

CO2 Produced (Metric Tons/MWh) 3,4 0.55 0.60 0.61Su
st
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3 LES is selling the Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) associated with its applicable resources and the renewable attributes are transferred to the REC recipient
4  Preliminary estimate based on emissions rates for the previous calendar year
*Numbers represent 2022 1st Quarter unless specifically notated as YTD or YE in Performance Indicator title
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Safety and Employer of Choice

4

Reliability and Customer Service

Performance Indicator Actual/ 
Projection

Forecast/ 
Target Indicator

Previous Year 
Actual/ 

Projection *

Industry 
Average

Sa
fe

ty
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d 
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er

 
of

 C
ho
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e

DART (YTD # of incidents per 100 employees that 
result in Days Away, Restricted, Transferred) 0.85 NA 0.86

*Numbers represent 2022 1st Quarter unless specifically notated as YTD or YE in Performance Indicator title

Performance Indicator Actual/ 
Projection

Forecast/ 
Target Indicator

Previous Year 
Actual/ 

Projection *

Industry 
Average

Average Speed of Answer (Seconds) 26.7 27.0 21.3 37.0

Annual Average Outage Time (SAIDI) Per Customer 
(Normal Weather) (12-month rolling) 13.9 <30.0 21.7 118.62
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2 EIA Rolling National Average

*Numbers represent 2022 1st Quarter unless specifically notated as YTD or YE in Performance Indicator title
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2021 // Annual Report

1
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Theme: Impactful
LES’ 2021 Annual Report is a synopsis of LES’ efforts and 
achievements. The online report highlights public power’s 
positive impacts on our customers, community and 
industry over the last year.

Promotion
• Social media

• LES.com

• Customer newsletters

• Internal promotion

2

LES.com/AnnualReport

https://www.les.com/annual-report
https://www.les.com/annual-report
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Team
• Online report:

• Brooke Rogers, senior specialist, Communications & Project
Manager

• Kyle Dump, specialist, Creative Communications

• Jenny Hasenjaeger, specialist, Website

• Financial Report:

• Dustin Daniel, manager, Financial Accounting

• Cindy Potter, Accountant

• Kayla Jones, Senior Accountant

• Linh Phung, Accountant

• 20 contributors from across LES

3

LES.com/AnnualReport
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LES.com

2022 Integrated Resource Plan
Frequently Asked Questions

Scott Benson
Manager, Resource & Transmission Planning

April 15, 2022
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Under Nebraska state law, public utilities are required to practice integrated resource planning and include 
least cost options when evaluating alternatives for providing energy supply and managing energy demand 
in Nebraska.
Source: Nebraska Revised Statute 66-1060, Nebraska Legislature

In accordance with Section 114 of the U.S. Energy Policy Act of 1992, the Western Area Power 
Administration (WAPA) requires all long-term firm power customers to submit an integrated resource plan 
every five years.
Source: Energy Planning and Management Program – IRP, Western Area Power Administration, 2/11/2020 Update

IRP Compliance Training - Reporting Deadlines, Western Area Power Administration, 2/19/2020 Update

What Requirements Does LES Fulfill by Conducting an IRP?

https://nebraskalegislature.gov/laws/statutes.php?statute=66-1060#:%7E:text=Legislative%20findings.,and%20nonrenewable%20supply%2Dside%20technologies.
https://www.wapa.gov/PowerMarketing/Pages/energy-planning.aspx
https://www.wapa.gov/EnergyServices/IRP/Pages/Deadlines.aspx
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Per WAPA, integrated resource planning is a process by which a power provider evaluates the full range of 
energy resources to ensure adequate and reliable service to its electric customers at the lowest system cost. 
Resource alternatives include:
• New generating capacity
• Power purchases
• Energy conservation and efficiency
• Cogeneration and district heating and cooling applications
• Renewable energy resources

The process must account for the necessary features of system operation, such as diversity, reliability, 
dispatchability and other risk factors.

The IRP must include the means to verify energy savings from energy conservation and efficiency measures, 
and projected savings from the measures over time; and shall treat demand and supply resources on an 
equal basis.
Source: IRP Compliance Training – Overview, Western Area Power Administration, 2/11/2020 Update

What is an IRP?

https://www.wapa.gov/EnergyServices/IRP/Pages/compliance-overview.aspx
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WAPA requires IRPs to:
• Identify and compare all practicable energy-efficiency and energy-supply resource options.
• Include an action plan with timing set by the customer.
• Describe efforts to minimize adverse environmental effects on new resource acquisitions.
• Provide ample opportunity for full public participation.
• Conduct load forecasting.
Source: IRP Compliance Training – Overview, Western Area Power Administration, 2/11/2020 Update

What is Required of the IRP?

https://www.wapa.gov/EnergyServices/IRP/Pages/compliance-overview.aspx
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The IRP culminates in a five-year action plan, identifying programs/resources that LES intends to 
implement or evaluate over the next five years.

LES is then required to provide annual progress reports to WAPA.
Source: IRP Compliance Training - Reporting Deadlines, Western Area Power Administration, 2/19/2020 Update

LES’ 2017 IRP Action Plan included:
• 30-year extension of the WAPA hydro-electric power contract (2021 – 2050).
• Continuation of the Sustainable Energy Program (SEP).
• Development of a bring-your-own-thermostat air conditioner demand response program, which

ultimately became Peak Rewards in 2018.
• Evaluation of a potential heat pump water heater incentive under the SEP, ultimately added in 2019.
• Evaluation of a potential plug-in electric vehicle pilot, which ultimately became the 2019 – 2021 study.

What is the Primary Deliverable of the IRP?

https://www.wapa.gov/EnergyServices/IRP/Pages/Deadlines.aspx
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LES historically submits an IRP on behalf of the Lincoln Cooperative, a collection of local WAPA 
customers, including:
• Lincoln Electric System
• University of Nebraska - Lincoln (UNL)
• Lincoln Regional Center
• Nebraska State Office Building
• Nebraska State Penitentiary

Who Coordinates with LES on the IRP?



LES.com

The analysis of the 2022 IRP will be the first to be guided by LES’ new decarbonization goal; net-zero CO2 
production from our generation portfolio by 2040.

Although there are too many unknowns between now and 2040 for this IRP to develop a full plan and a 
detailed timeline for achieving the goal, LES does expect this process to identify some of the primary 
building blocks.

How Will the IRP Tie into LES’ New Decarbonization Goal?
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The IRP is a significant, strategic undertaking that helps to outline LES’ future, but it still only represents an 
analysis at a single point in time. To account for an ever-changing landscape, LES is continually assessing 
and evaluating options, constantly conducting similar analysis specific to the decisions at hand.

Although many substantial projects have come out of the five-year IRP process, there are always 
significant decisions not foreseen by the IRP, including:
• The addition of 273 MW of wind resources (Arbuckle Mountain, Buckeye & Prairie Breeze II) in 2015.
• The development of Nebraska’s first utility-scale solar project in 2016, the 4 MWAC/5 MWDC Holdrege

Solar Center.
• LES’ exit from the Sheldon Station coal plant contract in 2017.

What are Some of the Limitations of the IRP?
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What is the 2022 IRP Timeline?

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Consulting: SEP Review

IRP Model Development

SEP Analysis

Assemble Report

Board meeting Public meeting IRP due to WAPA

Consulting: ELCC Forecasts

• IRP 101
• SEP 101
• SEP Review

• SEP Analysis Results
• IRP Analysis Scope
• SPP/ELCC 101

• IRP Analysis Results
• 5-Year Action Plan

• SPP Workshop

• ELCC Workshop

IRP Analysis

Customer Q&A

• Report Approval

2115 2317

2519 21

19

21

ELCC = Effective Load Carrying Capability
SPP = Southwest Power Pool



Exhibit XIII 



LES.com

Sustainable Energy Program 
Overview

Marc Shkolnick
Manager, Energy Services
April 15, 2022

1



LES.com

Sustainable Energy Program 
Overview

 SEP 101
 Primary Objectives
 Programs
 Cost Effectiveness

 2022 SEP Review Summary
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SEP Primary Objectives

Peak Reduction Market 
Transformation

Balance
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SEP Primary Objectives

Peak Reduction
 Incent technologies that reduce 

power requirements during 
summer weekday afternoons.

 Defer the need to build or 
purchase energy from new 
generating resources.

 Allow time for the development of 
new, low/zero carbon generating 
technologies.
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SEP Primary Objectives

Market 
Transformation

 Markets transform when adoption 
“tips” beyond early adopters and 
innovators.

 Incentives are meaningful when 
they sufficiently reduce first cost 
as a barrier.

 Once codes/appliance standards 
increase or adoption is 
widespread, incentives are no 
longer effective or necessary.
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SEP Primary Objectives

Balance

 SEP incentives need to be high 
enough to incent AND justified by 
avoided costs that benefit all non-
participants.

 Incentives set too low:
 Free ridership: demand and 

energy savings can’t be 
claimed.

 Incentives set too high:
 Non-participant costs are 

more than benefits they 
receive.

 Subsidization.
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Sustainable Energy Programs

Program Year Projects Incentives 
to Date

Net Annual 
Demand

Net Annual 
Energy

Heat Pump & AC 2009 11,500 $8 MM 9.0 MW 6,400 MWh
Sealing & Insulation 2010 1,100 $0.8 MM 0.3 MW 310 MWh
Heat Pump Water Heater 2019 70 $0.04 MM 0.0 MW 145 MWh
Peak Rewards 2018 2,300 $0.25 MM 3.3 MW 0 MWh

Total 14,970 $9.1 MM 12.6 MW 6,855 MWh

Residential

7
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Sustainable Energy Programs

Program Year Projects Incentives 
to Date

Net Annual 
Demand

Net Annual 
Energy

Commercial Lighting 2009 4,200 $13.5 MM 17.5 MW 93,300 
MWh

Commercial & Industrial 
Prescriptive/Custom
(Chillers, Variable Frequency 
Drives/Pumps, Compressed Air, etc.)

2010 860 $6.0 MM 5.0 MW 34,200 
MWh

Total 5,060 $19.5 MM 22.5 MW 127,500 MWh

Commercial & Industrial

8
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SEP Cost Effectiveness
Primary Test

Utility Cost Test 
(UCT)
≥ 1

• Avoided utility 
capacity, energy and 
emission costs.

Benefits

• Program 
administrative costs.

• Incentives.
Costs

Indicates whether the benefits of avoided utility costs exceed the 
costs incurred by the utility to implement the program.

9
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Ratepayer Impact
Measure Test

(RIM)
≥ 0.6

(Minimizes Level of Subsidization)

• Avoided utility 
capacity, energy 
and emission 
costs.

Benefits

• Program 
administrative costs.

• Incentives.
• Lost revenue.

Costs

SEP Cost Effectiveness
Secondary Test

A measure of the potential pressure on retail rates to make up for lost 
revenue brought about by energy efficiency. Not a primary cost test.

10
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2022 SEP Review Summary

nFront Consulting performed a high-level benchmark 
review with peer utilities and statewide energy efficiency 

studies and meta-analysis.

Their findings and recommendations follow.

11
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Cost 
Effectiveness

• Use of primary UCT and secondary 
RIM is appropriate.

• UCT becoming more widely adopted 
as primary test.

12
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Assumptions

• Assumed energy & demand savings, 
measure costs & life, net-to-gross 
adjustments were supported.

• Strive for more consistency for 
assumptions used in custom 
commercial & industrial projects.

13
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Assumptions

• Static inflation of 2.3% is appropriate 
but update periodically.

• Retail rate escalation at 1.0% may be 
a bit low compared to industry 
sources. Consider 1.3% to 1.7%.

14
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Assumptions

• Avoided SPP wholesale energy costs 
are appropriate.

• Avoided capacity costs at $30/kW is 
lower than much of the industry but 
5% escalation rate is higher. May 
consider $60 to $80/kW with lower 
annual escalation.

15
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Assumptions

• LES is one of the few utilities that 
directly includes avoided costs of CO2
in cost effectiveness modeling.

• Avoided CO2 emissions at $20/ton is 
higher than much of the industry but 
2.3% annual escalation rate is lower. 
May consider higher annual 
escalation.

16
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Additional 
Measures to 

Explore

• High efficiency humidifiers.
• Commercial kitchen equipment.
• Electric water heater direct load 

control.
• Variable/critical peak pricing.
• Voltage optimization and conservation 

voltage reduction.

17
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2022 SEP Review Summary

Next Steps

• Consideration of recommended input 
assumptions.

• Consideration of potential new 
measures.

18
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Discussion

19
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Revenue & Expense Statement (Condensed)
MARCH 2022

2022 2022 Percentage
YEAR TO DATE Actual Budget Difference Difference

1) Total Revenue $77,959 $73,988 $3,971 5%

Wholesale revenue exceeded budget by 32%, or $1.9M, while retail revenue was 3% above budget or $1.7M. 
Other revenue was $300K above budget due to the timing of Renewable Energy Credit sales.

2) Power Costs 32,325 31,261 1,064 3%

Lower than budgeted produced power expenses were offset by higher than budgeted purchased power 
expenses - primarily SPP IM purchases, which were $2.2M above budget.

3) Other Operating Expenses 18,140 20,052 (1,912) -10%

Below budget activity is primarily due to Technology Services project timing ($1.3M), lower payroll expense 
across the organization ($600K), and decreased travel and training expenses ($200K), partially offset by higher 
than budgeted transmission expenses of $260K.

4) Depreciation 8,539 8,275 264 3%
5) Total Expenses 59,004 59,588 (584) -1%

6) Operating Income 18,955 14,400 4,555 32%

7) Non-Operating Expense (Income) 10,247 10,330 (83) -1%

8) Change in Net Position (Net Revenue) $8,708 $4,070 $4,638             114%

Year End Projection Year End Budget
9) Debt Service Coverage 2.13 2.15

Month End Actual Month End Budget
10) Days Cash on Hand (Days) 214 182

Comments

(Dollar amounts in 000)

Year-to-date financial results are favorable due higher than budgeted revenue, combined with lower than budgeted net power costs 
and other operating expenses.
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REVENUE & EXPENSE STATEMENT
CURRENT MONTH  
MARCH 2022

CURRENT CURRENT LAST YEAR
DESCRIPTION MONTH MONTH MONTH

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT % ACTUAL  AMOUNT %
OPERATING REVENUES
  1. Retail $20,178,601 $19,703,804 $474,797 2.4% $20,478,956 ($300,355) -1.5%
  2. Wholesale 2,071,471 1,940,177 131,294 6.8% 1,489,628 581,843 39.1%
  3. Other Revenue 1,189,778 1,668,457 (478,679) -28.7% 969,279 220,499 22.7%
  4. City Dividend 845,544              846,980              (1,436)              -0.2% 739,653              105,891           14.3%
  5.   Total Operating Revenues 24,285,394 24,159,418 125,976 0.5% 23,677,516 607,878 2.6%

OPERATING EXPENSES
  6. Purchased Power 6,365,834 5,692,086 673,748 11.8% 5,491,120 874,714 15.9%
  7. Produced Power 3,664,440 4,244,899 (580,459) -13.7% 3,501,767 162,673 4.6%
  8. Operations 1,133,617 1,143,325 (9,708) -0.8% 1,154,927 (21,310) -1.8%
  9. Maintenance 772,287 757,126 15,161 2.0% 702,747 69,540 9.9%
10. Administrative & General 4,358,839 4,365,362 (6,523) -0.1% 3,999,995 358,844 9.0%
11. Depreciation 2,847,444           2,777,990           69,454             2.5% 3,158,156           (310,712)          -9.8%
12.   Total Operating Expenses 19,142,461 18,980,788 161,673 0.9% 18,008,712 1,133,749 6.3%

13. OPERATING INCOME 5,142,933 5,178,630 (35,697) -0.7% 5,668,804 (525,871) -9.3%

NONOPERATING EXPENSES (INCOME)
14. Interest Expense 1,584,980 1,575,525 9,455 0.6% 1,642,489 (57,509) -3.5%
15. Payments in Lieu of Taxes 972,103 975,887 (3,784) -0.4% 965,796 6,307 0.7%
16. City Dividend Expense 864,662 864,662 0 0.0% 737,500 127,162 17.2%
17. Other 0                         0                         0                      - - 12                       (12)                   -100.0%
18.   Total Other Expense 3,421,745 3,416,074 5,671 0.2% 3,345,797 75,948 2.3%
19. Interest Income (37,077)               (26,532)               (10,545)            39.7% (40,911)               3,834               -9.4%
20.   Total Nonoperating Expense (Income) 3,384,668 3,389,542 (4,874) -0.1% 3,304,886 79,782 2.4%

21. Income Before Contributions 1,758,265 1,789,088 (30,823) -1.7% 2,363,918 (605,653) -25.6%

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
22. Contributed Capital Received 63,200 56,753 6,447 11.4% 57,054 6,146 10.8%
23. Contributed Capital Used (63,200)               (56,753)               (6,447)              11.4% (57,054)               (6,146)              10.8%
24.   Net Contributed Capital 0 0 0 - - 0 0 - -

25. CHANGE IN NET POSITION $1,758,265 $1,789,088 ($30,823) -1.7% $2,363,918 ($605,653) -25.6%
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REVENUE & EXPENSE STATEMENT
YEAR-TO-DATE  
MARCH 2022

LAST YEAR
DESCRIPTION YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT % ACTUAL AMOUNT %
OPERATING REVENUES
  1. Retail $64,289,569 $62,555,015 $1,734,554 2.8% $62,808,573 $1,480,996 2.4%
  2. Wholesale 7,954,909 6,024,752 1,930,157 32.0% 43,036,859 (35,081,950) -81.5%
  3. Other Revenue 3,147,689 2,838,890 308,799 10.9% 2,059,266 1,088,423 52.9%
  4. City Dividend 2,566,952           2,569,546           (2,594)              -0.1% 2,227,423           339,529           15.2%
  5.   Total Operating Revenues 77,959,119 73,988,203 3,970,916 5.4% 110,132,121 (32,173,002) -29.2%

OPERATING EXPENSES
  6. Purchased Power 19,986,833 17,523,973 2,462,860 14.1% 33,841,851 (13,855,018) -40.9%
  7. Produced Power 12,337,686 13,737,085 (1,399,399) -10.2% 30,395,327 (18,057,641) -59.4%
  8. Operations 3,520,170 3,412,870 107,300 3.1% 3,536,620 (16,450) -0.5%
  9. Maintenance 1,927,569 2,284,005 (356,436) -15.6% 1,628,198 299,371 18.4%
10. Administrative & General 12,691,799 14,355,017 (1,663,218) -11.6% 12,835,180 (143,381) -1.1%
11. Depreciation 8,539,317           8,275,246           264,071           3.2% 9,539,549           (1,000,232)       -10.5%
12.   Total Operating Expenses 59,003,374 59,588,196 (584,822) -1.0% 91,776,725 (32,773,351) -35.7%

13. OPERATING INCOME 18,955,745 14,400,007 4,555,738 31.6% 18,355,396 600,349 3.3%

NONOPERATING EXPENSES (INCOME)
14. Interest Expense 4,741,491 4,735,400 6,091 0.1% 4,922,416 (180,925) -3.7%
16. Payments in Lieu of Taxes 2,986,292 3,079,660 (93,368) -3.0% 2,935,109 51,183 1.7%
17. City Dividend Expense 2,593,986 2,593,986 0 0.0% 2,212,500 381,486 17.2%
18. Other 63                       0                         63                    - - 15                       48                    -320.0%
19.   Total Other Expense 10,321,832 10,409,046 (87,214) -0.8% 10,070,040 251,792 2.5%
20. Interest Income (74,816)               (79,468)               4,652               -5.9% 90,667                (165,483)          -182.5%
21.   Total Nonoperating Expense (Income) 10,247,016 10,329,578 (82,562) -0.8% 10,160,707 86,309 0.8%

22. Income Before Contributions 8,708,729 4,070,429 4,638,300 114.0% 8,194,689 514,040 6.3%

CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
23. Contributed Capital Received 183,003 170,259 12,744 7.5% 259,012 (76,009) -29.3%
24. Contributed Capital Used (183,003)             (170,259)             (12,744)            7.5% (259,012)             76,009             -29.3%
25.   Net Contributed Capital 0 0 0 - - 0 0 - -

26. CHANGE IN NET POSITION $8,708,729 $4,070,429 $4,638,300 114.0% $8,194,689 $514,040 6.3%
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REVENUES, ENERGY & CUSTOMERS
CURRENT MONTH  
MARCH 2022

CURRENT CURRENT LAST YEAR
DESCRIPTION MONTH MONTH MONTH

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT % ACTUAL AMOUNT %
REVENUE
  1. Residential $9,379,436 $9,137,726 $241,710 2.6% $9,777,196 ($397,760) -4.1%
  2. Commercial & Street Light 8,352,224 7,994,002 358,222 4.5% 8,384,417 (32,193) -0.4%
  3. Industrial 2,446,941 2,572,076 (125,135) -4.9% 2,317,343 129,598 5.6%
  4.   Total Retail 20,178,601 19,703,804 474,797 2.4% 20,478,956 (300,355) -1.5%
  5. SPP Sales 1,617,747 1,398,112 219,635 15.7% 1,109,437 508,310 45.8%
  6. Contract Sales 453,724              542,065              (88,341)            -16.3% 380,191              73,533             19.3%
  7.   Total Wholesale 2,071,471           1,940,177           131,294           6.8% 1,489,628           581,843           39.1%
  8.   Total 22,250,072         21,643,981         606,091           2.8% 21,968,584         281,488           1.3%
ENERGY (MWH'S)
 9. Residential 96,004 94,651 1,353 1.4% 111,628 (15,624) -14.0%
10. Commercial & Street Light 112,378 105,521 6,857 6.5% 112,610 (232) -0.2%
11. Industrial 38,489 38,405 84 0.2% 35,070 3,419 9.7%
12.   Total Retail 246,871 238,577 8,294 3.5% 259,308 (12,437) -4.8%
13. SPP Sales 38,085 71,773 (33,688) -46.9% 40,655 (2,570) -6.3%
14. Contract Sales 6,228                  8,356                  (2,128)              -25.5% 6,275                  (47)                   -0.7%
15.   Total Wholesale 44,313                80,129                (35,816)            -44.7% 46,930                (2,617)              -5.6%
16.   Total 291,184 318,706 (27,522) -8.6% 306,238 (15,054) -4.9%
CUSTOMERS - AT MONTH END
17. Residential 129,566 128,966 600 0.5% 127,951 1,615 1.3%
18. Commercial & Street Light 17,486 17,645 (159) -0.9% 17,295 191 1.1%
19. Industrial 231 233 (2) -0.9% 233 (2) -0.9%
20.   Total Retail 147,283 146,844 439 0.3% 145,479 1,804 1.2%
21. Wholesale 7                         8                         (1)                     -12.5% 8                         (1)                     -12.5%
22.   Total 147,290 146,852 438 0.3% 145,487 1,803 1.2%
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REVENUES, ENERGY & CUSTOMERS
YEAR-TO-DATE  
MARCH 2022

LAST YEAR
DESCRIPTION YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT % ACTUAL AMOUNT %
REVENUE
  1. Residential $31,289,344 $30,448,912 $840,432 2.8% $30,404,671 $884,673 2.9%
  2. Commercial & Street Light 25,738,847 24,839,885 898,962 3.6% 25,194,068 544,779 2.2%
  3. Industrial 7,261,378 7,266,218 (4,840) -0.1% 7,209,834 51,544 0.7%
  4.   Total Retail 64,289,569 62,555,015 1,734,554 2.8% 62,808,573 1,480,996 2.4%
  5. SPP Sales 6,206,134 3,575,887 2,630,247 73.6% 40,876,511 (34,670,377) -84.8%
  6. Contract Sales 1,748,775           2,448,865           (700,090)          -28.6% 2,160,348           (411,573)          -19.1%
  7.   Total Wholesale 7,954,909           6,024,752           1,930,157        32.0% 43,036,859         (35,081,950)     -81.5%
  8.   Total 72,244,478         68,579,767         3,664,711        5.3% 105,845,432 (33,600,954)     -31.7%
ENERGY (MWH'S)
 9. Residential 350,173 342,544 7,629 2.2% 361,616 (11,443) -3.2%
10. Commercial & Street Light 349,287 334,812 14,475 4.3% 340,911 8,376 2.5%
11. Industrial 111,376 109,386 1,990 1.8% 106,952 4,424 4.1%
12.   Total Retail 810,836 786,742 24,094 3.1% 809,479 1,357 0.2%
13. SPP Sales 123,334 156,704 (33,370) -21.3% 139,399 (16,065) -11.5%
14. Contract Sales 40,251                78,479                (38,228)            -48.7% 71,778                (31,527)            -43.9%
15.   Total Wholesale 163,585              235,183              (71,598)            -30.4% 211,177              (47,592)            -22.5%
16.   Total 974,421 1,021,925 (47,504) -4.6% 1,020,656 (46,235) -4.5%
CUSTOMERS AVERAGE
17. Residential 129,396 128,851 545 0.4% 127,743 1,653 1.3%
18. Commercial & Street Light 17,479 17,626 (147) -0.8% 17,290 189 1.1%
19. Industrial 232 233 (1) -0.4% 233 (1) -0.4%
20.   Total Retail 147,107 146,710 397 0.3% 145,266 1,841 1.3%
21. Wholesale 7                         8                         (1)                     -12.5% 8                         (1)                     -12.5%
22.   Total 147,114 146,718 396 0.3% 145,274 1,840 1.3%
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OPERATING EXPENSE STATEMENT
CURRENT MONTH  
MARCH 2022

CURRENT CURRENT LAST YEAR
DESCRIPTION MONTH MONTH MONTH

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT % ACTUAL AMOUNT %

POWER COST
  1. SPP Purchased Power $1,181,609 $416,560 $765,049 183.7% $543,210 $638,399 117.5%
  2. Non-Owned Asset Power 5,184,225           5,275,526              (91,301)              -1.7% 4,947,910               236,315             4.8%
  3.   Total Purchased Power 6,365,834 5,692,086 673,748 11.8% 5,491,120 874,714 15.9%
  4. Produced Power 3,664,440           4,244,899              (580,459)            -13.7% 3,501,767               162,673             4.6%
  5.   Total Power Cost 10,030,274 9,936,985 93,289 0.9% 8,992,887 1,037,387 11.5%

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (O&M)
  6. Energy Delivery 1,802,058 1,839,731 (37,673) -2.0% 1,747,950 54,108 3.1%
  7. Transmission 103,846              60,720                   43,126               71.0% 109,724                  (5,878)                -5.4%
  8.   Total O & M Expense 1,905,904 1,900,451 5,453 0.3% 1,857,674 48,230 2.6%

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL (A&G)
  9. Administration 258,994 257,275 1,719 0.7% 242,577 16,417 6.8%
10. Communication & Corporate Records 191,770 193,027 (1,257) -0.7% 161,212 30,558 19.0%
11. Corporate Operations 1,026,587 867,914 158,673 18.3% 746,811 279,776 37.5%
12. Customer Services 1,002,155 957,815 44,340 4.6% 1,036,154 (33,999) -3.3%
13. Financial Services 374,869 424,171 (49,302) -11.6% 391,250 (16,381) -4.2%
14. Power Supply 396,000 357,712 38,288 10.7% 501,387 (105,387) -21.0%
15. Technology Services 1,108,464           1,307,448              (198,984)            -15.2% 920,604                  187,860             20.4%
16.   Total A & G Expense 4,358,839 4,365,362 (6,523) -0.1% 3,999,995 358,844 9.0%

17. DEPRECIATION 2,847,444 2,777,990 69,454 2.5% 3,158,156 (310,712) -9.8%

18. TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE $19,142,461 $18,980,788 $161,673 0.9% $18,008,712 $1,133,749 6.3%

Page 5

VARIANCE FROM
BUDGET

VARIANCE FROM
LAST YEAR



OPERATING EXPENSE STATEMENT
YEAR-TO-DATE  
MARCH 2022

LAST YEAR
DESCRIPTION YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL BUDGET AMOUNT % ACTUAL AMOUNT %

POWER COST
  1. SPP Purchased Power $4,230,835 $2,020,251 $2,210,584 109.4% $20,188,040 ($15,957,205) -79.0%
  2. Non-Owned Asset Power 15,755,998         15,503,722           252,276             1.6% 13,653,811             2,102,187          15.4%
  3.   Total Purchased Power 19,986,833 17,523,973 2,462,860 14.1% 33,841,851 (13,855,018) -40.9%
  4. Produced Power 12,337,686         13,737,085           (1,399,399)         -10.2% 30,395,327             (18,057,641)       -59.4%
  5.   Total Power Cost 32,324,519 31,261,058 1,063,461 3.4% 64,237,178 (31,912,659) -49.7%

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE (O&M)
  6. Energy Delivery 4,993,049 5,503,943 (510,894) -9.3% 4,770,905 222,144 4.7%
  7. Transmission 454,690              192,932                 261,758             135.7% 393,913                  60,777               15.4%
  8.   Total O & M Expense 5,447,739 5,696,875 (249,136) -4.4% 5,164,818 282,921 5.5%

ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL (A&G)
  9. Administration 707,014 740,766 (33,752) -4.6% 672,323 34,691 5.2%
10. Communication & Corporate Records 510,139 527,067 (16,928) -3.2% 452,341 57,798 12.8%
11. Corporate Operations 3,284,677 3,101,285 183,392 5.9% 2,718,315 566,362 20.8%
12. Customer Services 2,546,510 2,690,667 (144,157) -5.4% 2,565,360 (18,850) -0.7%
13. Financial Services 1,108,827 1,176,472 (67,645) -5.7% 1,150,677 (41,850) -3.6%
14. Power Supply 1,083,765 1,150,411 (66,646) -5.8% 1,483,244 (399,479) -26.9%
15. Technology Services 3,450,867           4,968,349              (1,517,482)         -30.5% 3,792,920               (342,053)            -9.0%
16.   Total A & G Expense 12,691,799 14,355,017 (1,663,218) -11.6% 12,835,180 (143,381) -1.1%

17. DEPRECIATION 8,539,317 8,275,246 264,071 3.2% 9,539,549 (1,000,232) -10.5%

18. TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE $59,003,374 $59,588,196 ($584,822) -1.0% $91,776,725 ($32,773,351) -35.7%
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BALANCE SHEET
MARCH 2022

ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES                              LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION  
END OF VARIANCE END OF VARIANCE

DESCRIPTION MONTH SINCE DESCRIPTION MONTH SINCE
BALANCE JANUARY 1 BALANCE JANUARY 1

CURRENT ASSETS: CURRENT LIABILITIES:
  1. Revenue Fund (including CDFUO) $116,723,917 ($9,087,316)  OTHER LIABILITIES
  2. Payments in Lieu of Taxes Fund $14,339,414 $2,843,819   1. Accounts Payable $14,238,243 ($5,744,293)
  3. Rate Stabilization Fund 37,213,768 49,361   2. Accrued Payments in Lieu of Taxes 15,311,892 2,912,329
  4. Bond Principal & Interest Funds 19,323,675 2,453,651   3. City Dividend for Utility Ownership Payable 864,662 (2,593,986)
  5. Other Restricted/Designated Funds 3,458,964              1,407,570                4. Commercial Paper Notes 65,500,000 0
  6.   Restricted/Designated Funds Total 59,996,407            3,910,582                5. Accrued Liabilities 14,540,666            533,027                     
  7.   Total Current Asset Funds 191,059,738 (2,332,915)   6.   Total Other Liabilities 110,455,463 (4,892,923)
  8. Receivables Less Uncollectible Allowance 17,681,985 (3,140,661)  CURRENT LIABILITIES - RESTRICTED ASSETS
  9. Unbilled Revenue 14,973,908 (566,624)   7. Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 30,205,000 0
10. Accrued Interest Receivable 129,825 (29,453)   8. Accrued Interest 1,720,983              (5,088,597)                
11. Materials, Supplies & Fuel Inventory 25,453,759 1,451,391   9. Other Current Liabilities 940,004                 25,483                       
12. Plant Operation Assets 15,713,277 2,433,302 10.   Total Current Liabilities - Restricted Assets 32,865,987            (5,063,114)                
13. Other Current Assets 4,065,305              (52,722)                  11.     Total Current Liabilities 143,321,450 (9,956,037)
14.     Total Current Assets 269,077,797 (2,237,682)

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
NONCURRENT ASSETS: 12. 2003 Bonds 0 0
15. Bond Reserve Funds 10,214,736 24,375 13. 2012-A Bonds 14,000,000 0
16. Self-Funded Benefits Reserve Fund (IBNP) 633,277                 19,417                   14. 2013 Bonds 60,785,000 0
17. Segregated Funds 0                            0                            15. 2015-A Bonds 72,895,000            0                                
18.   Restricted Fund Total 10,848,013 43,792 16. 2016 Bonds 65,960,000            0                                
19. Unamortized Debt Expense 2,714,089 (99,376) 17. 2018 Bonds 121,205,000          0                                
20. Other Noncurrent Assets 1,666,572              20,464                   18. 2020A Bonds 72,200,000            0                                
21.     Total Noncurrent Assets 15,228,674 (35,120) 19. 2020B Bonds 185,150,000          0                                

20.   Total Revenue Bonds 592,195,000          0                                
CAPITAL ASSETS: 21. Less Current Maturities 30,205,000 0
22. Utility Plant in Service 1,775,232,341 3,659,680 22. Less Unamortized Discounts/Premiums (45,526,601)           1,691,399                  
23. Accumulated Depreciation & Amortization (882,379,676) (8,380,564) 23. Note Purchase Agreement 0                            0                                
24. Construction Work in Progress 87,987,602            5,065,070              24. Revolving Credit Agreement 0                            0                                
25.     Total Capital Assets 980,840,267 344,186 25.   Net Long Term Debt 607,516,601 (1,691,399)

26. Liabilities Payable from Segregated Funds  (e) 0                            0                                
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 27. Asset Retirement Obligation 3,480,541              (29,906)                     
26. Deferred Loss on Refunded Debt 11,535,133            (1,010,091) 28. Other Noncurrent Liabilities 35,565,005            0                                
27. Deferred Costs for Asset Retirement Obligations 3,480,541              (29,906)                  29.     Total Liabilities 789,883,597 (11,677,342)
28.     Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 15,015,674 (1,039,997)

NET POSITION:
30. Net Investment in Capital Assets 298,914,030 1,850,203
31. Restricted for Debt Service 17,611,667 7,566,623
32. Restricted for Employee Health Insurance Claims 1,461,567 421,258
33. Unrestricted 172,291,551          (1,129,355)                
34.     Total Net Position 490,278,815 8,708,729

29. TOTAL ASSETS & DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES $1,280,162,412 ($2,968,613) 35. TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET POSITION $1,280,162,412 ($2,968,613)

  
Page 7



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MARCH 2022  

CURRENT MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  1. Received from Sales to Customers and Users $29,136,574 $86,443,959
  2. Paid to Suppliers for Goods & Services (17,741,197) (57,936,619)
  3. Paid to Employees for Services (1,405,747)                                 (5,847,640)                                 
  4. Cash Flow from Operating Activities  (a) 9,989,630 22,659,700

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  5. Payments in Lieu of Taxes 0 (73,963)
  6. City Dividend for Utility Ownership Payments 0 (5,187,972)
  7. Other 0                                                0                                                
  8. Cash Flow from (used for) Non-capital Financing Activities 0 (5,261,935)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  9. Net (Purchases) Sales of Investments (6,723,091) (2,751,767)
10. Interest Income 14,520                                       101,261                                     
11. Cash Flow from (used for) Investing Activities (6,708,571) (2,650,506)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
12. Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (4,040,883) (9,537,531)
13. Salvage on Retirement of Plant 12,760 12,760
14. Cost of Removal of Property Retired (94,809) (218,074)
15. Debt Issuance Cost Paid 0 0
16. Debt Premiums Collected 0 0
17. Net Capital Contributions 63,200 183,003
18. Net Proceeds form Issuance of Long-Term Debt 0 0
19. Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt 0 0
20. Interest Payments on Long-Term Debt (10,213,210)                               (10,231,314)                               
21. Cash Flow from (used for) Capital Financing Activities (14,272,942) (19,791,156)

22. Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (10,991,883) (5,043,897)
23. Cash and Cash Equivalent Beginning of Period 33,355,408                                27,407,422                                
24. Cash and Cash Equivalent End of Period  (b) $22,363,525 $22,363,525

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOOTNOTES
(a)  Reconciliation of operating income to cash flows from operating activities
  1. Net Operating Revenue $5,142,933 $18,955,745
  2. Noncash items included in operating income 2,921,125 8,760,360
  3. Changes in Assets & Liabilities Increase/(Decrease) 1,925,572                                              (5,056,405)                                             
  4. Net cash flows from operating activities $9,989,630 $22,659,700

(b)  Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash and investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
MARCH 2022  

DESCRIPTION ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL
THIS YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR THIS YEAR THIS YEAR LAST YEAR

  1. Total Operating Revenues $24,285,394 $24,159,418 $23,677,516 $77,959,119 $73,988,203 $110,132,121

  2. Total Operating Expenses 19,142,461 18,980,788 18,008,712 59,003,374 59,588,196 91,776,725
  3. Less Depreciation (2,847,444)            (2,777,990)            (3,158,156)            (8,539,317)            (8,275,246)            (9,539,549)            
  4. Operating Expense Net of Depreciation 16,295,017 16,202,798 14,850,556 50,464,057 51,312,950 82,237,176

  5. Net Operating Revenue for Debt Service 7,990,377 7,956,620 8,826,960 27,495,062 22,675,253 27,894,945
  6. Interest Income (a) 31,980 24,005 25,958 16,563 71,885 (68,541)
  7. Other Income 0 0 0 0 0 0
  8. Rate Stabilization Fund 0                            0                            0                            0                            0                            0                            

  9. AVAILABLE FOR DEBT SERVICE 8,022,357 7,980,625 8,852,918 27,511,625 22,747,138 27,826,404

 10. DEBT SERVICE (b) 4,218,043 4,218,042 4,101,825 12,654,130 12,654,126 12,305,476

 11. DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 1.90 1.89 2.16 2.17 1.80 2.26

(a)  Excludes interest from Rate Stabilization Fund.
(b)  Includes Bond Principal & Interest only.  Page 9
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Power Supply Division
2022 March Monthly Report

April 15, 2022

Jason Fortik
Vice President, Power Supply
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Monthly Actual vs. Budget 
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Daily Temperature Range 
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Customer Energy Consumption
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Unit Equivalent Availability
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Resource Energy
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Energy Utilized by the SPP Integrated Marketplace
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